
People Scrutiny Commission
Agenda

Date:      Monday, 14 December 2020
Time:      10.00 am
Venue:   Virtual Meeting - Zoom Committee Meeting 
with Public Access via YouTube

Distribution:
Councillors: Claire Hiscott (Chair), Eleanor Combley, Jude English, Carole Johnson, Tim Kent, Gill Kirk, 
Brenda Massey, Celia Phipps, Ruth Pickersgill, and Steve Smith 

Copies to: Judith Brown (Bristol Older People’s Forum Ambassador and Chair, Bristol Ageing Better), 
Jacqui Jensen (Executive Director, People), Hugh Evans (Director of Adult Social Care), Christina Gray 
(Director of Public Health), Alison Hurley (Director of Education and Skills), Ann James (Director of 
Children, Families and Safer Communities) 

Issued by: Dan Berlin, Scrutiny Advisor
City Hall, PO Box 3399, Bristol, BS3 9FS
Tel: 0117 3525232
E-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Date: Friday, 4 December 2020

Public Document Pack

mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


People Scrutiny Commission – Agenda

Agenda

1. Welcome and Introduction 10.00 am

(Pages 5 - 6)

2. Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

3. Declarations of Interest 
To note any declarations of interest from the Councillors. They are asked to
indicate the relevant agenda item, the nature of the interest and in particular
whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest.

Any declaration of interest made at the meeting which is not on the register of
interests should be notified to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion.

4. Election of Vice-Chair 

5. Minutes of Previous Meeting 
To agree the minutes of the previous meeting as a correct record. (Pages 7 - 14)

6. Action Tracker 

(Pages 15 - 17)

7. Chair's Business 
To note any announcements from the Chair

8. Public Forum 

Up to 30 minutes is allowed for this item.
 
Any member of the public or Councillor may participate in Public Forum.  The 
detailed arrangements for so doing are set out in the Public Information Sheet at 
the back of this agenda.  Public Forum items should be emailed to 
democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk and please note that the following deadlines 
will apply in relation to this meeting:-

mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


People Scrutiny Commission – Agenda

Questions - Written questions must be received 3 clear working days prior to the 
meeting.  For this meeting, this means that your question(s) must be received in 
this office at the latest by 5 pm on Tuesday 8th December.

Petitions and Statements - Petitions and statements must be received on the 
working day prior to the meeting.  For this meeting this means that your 
submission must be received in this office at the latest by 12 noon on Friday 11th 
December

Register to Attend - Your intention to attend and speak to your Public Forum 
submission must be received 2 clear working days prior to the meeting.  For this 
meeting, this means that your registration to attend must be received in this 
office at the latest by 5pm on Wednesday 9th December.

9. The Disproportionate Impact of Covid-19 on Black, Asian, and 
Minority Ethnic Communities 

(Pages 18 - 37)

10. Temple Quarter Free School Update 

(Pages 38 - 41)

11. Review of SEND Evidence Day Findings and Recommendations 

(Pages 42 - 60)

12. People Scrutiny Working Group Report (Safeguarding children 
and young people within context of Covid-19) 

Members to note the report; the next scheduled meeting (8th March 2021) to 
include response to recommendations. 

(Pages 61 - 84)

13. Work Programme (for information) 

(Page 85)



www.bristol.gov.uk 

Public Information Sheet
Inspection of Papers - Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

You can find papers for all our meetings on our website at https://www.bristol.gov.uk/council-meetings 

Covid-19: changes to how we hold public meetings

Following changes to government rules, we will use video conferencing to hold all public meetings, 
including Cabinet, Full Council, regulatory meetings (where planning and licensing decisions are made) 
and scrutiny.

Councillors will take decisions remotely and the meetings will be broadcast live on YouTube.

Members of the public who wish to present their public forum in person during the video conference 
must register their interest by giving at least two clear working days’ notice to Democratic Services of 
the request.  To take part in the meeting, you will be required to register for a Zoom account, so that 
Democratic Services is able to match your named Zoom account to your public forum submission, and 
send you the password protected link and the instructions required to join the Zoom meeting to make 
your statement or ask your supplementary question(s).

As part of our security arrangements, please note that we will not permit access to the meeting if 
your Zoom credentials do not match your public forum submission credentials. This is in the 
interests of helping to ensure a safe meeting environment for all attending or observing proceedings 
via a live broadcast.  

Please note: Members of the public will only be invited into the meeting for the duration of their 
submission and then be removed to permit the next public forum participant to speak.

Changes to Public Forum

Members of the public may make a written statement, ask a question or present a petition to most 
meetings.  Your statement or question will be sent to the Committee Members and will be published 
on the Council’s website before the meeting.  Please send it to democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk.  
The following requirements apply:

 The statement is received no later than 12.00 noon on the working day before the meeting and is 
about a matter which is the responsibility of the committee concerned.

 The question is received no later than 5pm three clear working days before the meeting.
 Any statement submitted should be no longer than one side of A4 paper. For copyright reasons, 

we are unable to reproduce or publish newspaper or magazine articles that may be attached to 
statements.

 Your intention to attend the meeting must be received no later than two clear working days in 
advance. The meeting agenda will clearly state the relevant public forum deadlines.

Page 4

Agenda Item 1

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/council-meetings
mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


www.bristol.gov.uk 

By participating in public forum business, we will assume that you have consented to your name and 
the details of your submission being recorded and circulated to the Committee, published on the 
website and within the minutes. Your statement or question will also be made available to the public 
via publication on the Council’s website and may be provided upon request in response to Freedom of 
Information Act requests in the future.

We will try to remove personal and identifiable information.  However, because of time constraints we 
cannot guarantee this, and you may therefore wish to consider if your statement contains information 
that you would prefer not to be in the public domain.  Other committee papers may be placed on the 
council’s website and information within them may be searchable on the internet.

During the meeting:

 Public Forum is normally one of the first items on the agenda, although statements and petitions 
that relate to specific items on the agenda may be taken just before the item concerned.

 There will be no debate on statements or petitions.  
 Public Forum will be circulated to the Committee members prior to the meeting and published on 

the website.
 If you have arranged with Democratic Services to attend the meeting to present your statement or 

ask a question(s), you should log into Zoom and use the meeting link provided which will admit you 
to the waiting room.

 The Chair will call each submission in turn and you will be invited into the meeting. When you are 
invited to speak, please make sure that your presentation focuses on the key issues that you would 
like Members to consider. This will have the greatest impact.

 Your time allocation may have to be strictly limited if there are a lot of submissions. This may be as 
short as one minute, and you may need to be muted if you exceed your allotted time.

 If there are a large number of submissions on one matter, a representative may be requested to 
speak on the group’s behalf.

 If you do not attend the meeting at which your public forum submission is being taken your 
statement will be noted by Members.

For further information about procedure rules please refer to our Constitution 
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/how-council-decisions-are-made/constitution

Webcasting/ Recording of meetings

Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in Public forum are advised that all virtual 
public meetings including Full Council and Cabinet meetings are now broadcast live via the council's 
webcasting pages. The whole of the meeting will be broadcast (except where there are confidential or 
exempt items).  

Other formats and languages and assistance for those with hearing impairment

You can get committee papers in other formats (e.g. large print, audio tape, braille etc) or in 
community languages by contacting the Democratic Services Officer.  Please give as much notice as 
possible.  We cannot guarantee re-formatting or translation of papers before the date of a particular 
meeting.

Page 5

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/how-council-decisions-are-made/constitution
http://www.bristol.public-i.tv/site/


Bristol City Council
Minutes of the People Scrutiny Commission

22 October 2020 at 2.00 pm

Members Present:-
Councillors: Claire Hiscott (Chair), Eleanor Combley, Carole Johnson, Tim Kent, Gill Kirk, Brenda Massey, 
Celia Phipps, Ruth Pickersgill, and Steve Smith 

Also present:-
Councillor Asher Craig, Deputy Mayor (Communities, Equalities & Public Health); Councillor Helen 
Holland, Cabinet Member (Adult Social Care);  Councillor Helen Godwin, Cabinet Member (Women, 
Families and Homes, Lead Member For Children’s Services); Judith Brown, Co-optee

1. Welcome, Introduction and Safety Information

The Chair welcomed all attendees to the meeting.

2. Apologies for Absence and Substitutions

No apologies for absence were received.

3. Declarations of Interest

Cllrs Brenda Massey, Carole Johnson, and Celia Phipps declared their recent appointments as Deputy 
Cabinet Members.  

Cllr Celia Phipps declared her role as Social Prescriber in South Bristol.

4. Annual Business Report

RESOLVED;

That ;

 The Annual Business Report be noted;

Page 6

Agenda Item 5



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

 The Scrutiny Commission’s Terms of Reference be noted;

 The election of a Vice-Chair for the Commission be deferred to the next meeting, after the Party 
Group Leads had provided guidance on the role of Deputy Cabinet Member;

 The membership of the Commission for the 2020/2021 municipal year be noted;

 The 2020/2021 meeting dates for the Scrutiny Commission be noted.

5. Minutes of Previous Meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on 27th February 2020 were agreed as a true record.

6. Chair's Business

The Chair explained that the scheduled Public Health item for this meeting  (impact of Covid-19 on Black, 
Asian & Minority Ethnic communities) had been put back to the agenda on the 14th December due to the 
extra focus the Public Health team had as a result of new public health guidance and the increased rate of 
Covid-19 cases. 
 
The Chair explained that the Scrutiny Working Group Final Report would be brought to the Overview & 
Scrutiny Management Board on the 2nd November. All Group Leads of the Commission confirmed they 
were satisfied with the report and the recommendations.

The Scrutiny Advisor informed Members that the nominations for the statutory co-optees for education 
matters were being requested; that there were 4 vacancies; and that if the Commission received 
nominations they would be invited to join the Commission to contribute on education matters for the 
municipal years 202-21 and 2021-22; and that they would be invited to attend the next meeting on the 
14th December.

The Chair thanked Judith Brown, Bristol Older People’s Forum Ambassador and Chair of Bristol Ageing 
Better,  for her continued engagement and valuable contribution to the work of the People Scrutiny 
Commission as non-statutory co-optee.

The Chair proposed the election of the Vice-Chair be deferred to the next meeting, after Party Group 
Leads provide guidance on the role of Deputy Cabinet Member.   

RESOLVED;

That;

Page 7



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

 The scheduled Public Health update focussing on the impact of Covid-19 on Black, Asian & 
Minority Ethnic communities be deferred to the next agenda on the 14th December, subject to 
review closer to the date;

 The Commission welcomed recruitment to any, or all, of the four vacant statutory co-optee 
positions for education matters;

 The Scrutiny Working Group Report be published and brought to the Overview & Scrutiny 
Management Board in its present form;

 Judith Brown remain non-statutory co-optee for the municipal year 2020-21;

 The election of Vice-Chair be deferred to next meeting on the 14th December, after the Party 
Group Leads have provided guidance on the role of Deputy Cabinet Member.  

7. Public Forum

There were no Public Forum submissions.

8. Public Health Update

The Director of Public Health introduced the report, and explained the new national alert system.

 There was a discussion about hospital capacity, and Members were informed that it would be reduced 
to ensure increased Covid-security. 

 Members were advised that this was a fast moving situation, the way patients were treated had 
improved and so better outcomes were expected although detailed information would be better 
provided by NHS clinical leads. 

 An update on the system response was planned to be brought to the Health Scrutiny Committee (sub -
committee of the People Scrutiny Commission), and/or the Joint Health Scrutiny Commission.

 There was a discussion about how schools were operating in a Covid-secure way, and Members were 
advised the Director of Education & Skills had been working closely with head teachers and school 
settings were very Covid-secure.  School leaders made informed decisions with the Council’s support 
and advice. 

 The Commission was told that the age profile of cases showed the majority were under the 30 year age 
group, and that, within that cohort, fewer than 50% were likely to be students. 

Page 8



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

 University clusters had been well managed, with no evidence of transmission into the wider 
community.

 It was noted that there had been an increase in the rate of cases within adults of working age, and that 
it was anticipated rates would continue to rise.

 The Council had been working closely with care homes, employers and schools to ensure advice and 
support was in place to enable Covid-secure environments and to make appropriate interventions to 
stop transmission.

RESOLVED;

That;

 The Public Health Update be noted;

 The Health Scrutiny Committee (sub-committee of the People Scrutiny Commission) invite the 
NHS to provide an update on the heath system response.

9. Performance Report Q1

The Executive Director of People introduced the report.

 There was a discussion about apprenticeships.  Members were advised this was a national concern, 
and that, as per the One City Plan, the Council had reached out to partners, including voluntary sector 
and Small and Medium-sized Enterprises, to encourage and support apprenticeships.  

 Members were informed the Apprenticeship Levy did not pay for the post, only for training.  

 The take-up of free early educational entitlement by eligible 2 year olds was discussed.  Members were 
advised that COVID-19 had impacted take-up of places, but nurseries had been available, encouraging 
as many families as possible by working hard to stay open over the months throughout the pandemic. 

 School as a safe place was emphasised, and that this evidence should be demonstrated to the wider 
community.

 The performance indicator for Education Health Care Plans (EHCPs) was discussed and improvement 
was noted, and more detailed information was requested by the Commission regarding the number of 
applications waiting to be assessed and how the target had been set. 

Page 9



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

 The performance indicator ‘Reduce the number of adolescents (aged 13-17) who need to enter care’ 
was discussed. The Commission was advised that this was a difficult area to achieve good outcomes, 
and that there was a need for about 6 years to enable trauma informed trusted relations to produce 
positive outcomes.

 Young people had informed ways of working, and ‘edge of care’ teams had been created, similar to the 
Essex model.  This had been successful in reducing placement numbers by 70.  

 Members were informed that there had been a rise in extra-familial harm over the past year, and the 
Council was focusing on contextual safeguarding methods. 

 The Commission enquired about the performance indicator relating to breastfeeding and requested 
further information to break down the figures by ward.  

 The Commission was advised that Children’s and Education services had a range of resources, including 
films online, which provided an overview of the experience of a child, which included domestic abuse, 
neglect, and substance misuse.  The Chair welcomed the offer to share those resources with Members.  

 There was a discussion about the performance indicator ‘Increase the number of adults in low pay 
work & receiving benefits accessing in-work support’ (BCPC268), and it was agreed further information 
regarding what had been done and what was planned to improve access to in-work support was 
needed. 

  

RESOLVED;

That;

 The Commission noted the Performance Report;

 The Commission receive more detailed information regarding the processing of EHCP applications 
(refer to BCPB225), including the numbers waiting to be assessed, related information impacting 
on reducing the backlog, and how the target had been set;

 The Commission receive a breakdown of data by ward relating to the breastfeeding rates 
(referring to DPEC123);

 Examples of training resources, including films online, be shared with the Commission;

 A Member briefing be requested to provide further information and context about how the 
Council approached the need to improve the number of adults in low pay work & receiving 
benefits accessing in-work support (reference to BCPC268).

Page 10



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

10.Risk Report Q1

The Executive Director of People introduced the report.

 The Commission was advised that there was a high risk around safeguarding vulnerable children, that 
there was a growing risk around criminal exploitation; and that the likelihood and ability to mitigate 
risk when outside the family was high.

 There was a discussion about Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) with regard to known 
risks and it was noted that these had been addressed in the performance item.  Members were 
advised that a written statement of action and action plan had been produced and was monitored 
through government bodies.

RESOLVED;

That;

 The Commission noted the risk report;

 The Commission noted the known risks regarding SEND and would continue to review 
performance, including at the next scheduled Commission meeting.

11.Mental Health Strategy

The Deputy Mayor (Communities, Equalities & Public Health) thanked the Public Health team, the Bristol 
North Somerset South Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group (BNSSG CCG), and the Voluntary and 
Community Sector, with regard to the response and work undertaken within the context of COVID-19;  
that everyone needed to pivot quickly in terms of the work which was required surrounding mental 
health. It was noted that learning from the lockdown highlighted the need to prioritise mental health due 
to the effect on the work force, children, parents, and our communities.  

The Consultant in Public Health and the Co-Chair BNSSG Mental Health Cell (COVID-19 Response) 
introduced the report.

 The Commission was advised that the strategy was evolving with continual revision based on wider 
participation so as to embed learning; and that this was a ‘whole system’ approach, which took into 
account interconnectivity of different areas, importance of relationships, and utilised co-production. 

 Members were advised that there was mental health helpline available; 24/7 Support & Connect, 
which was a confidential helpline staffed by experienced counsellors, who people could talk to with 
emotional support provided.  People would also be able to be connected to appropriate organisations 

Page 11



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

in Bristol, North Somerset, and South Gloucestershire. The helpline number (available 24 hour) was 
provided: 0800 0126549.

 There was a discussion about waiting lists for mental health provision, and Members were informed 
there were a range of metrics created, and Members welcomed the offer of details to be circulated.

The Senior Public Health Specialists introduced the work streams which supported the COVID-19 
response, including Children, Young People, Schools & Students; Thrive at Work; Communities; Mental 
Health Literacy; Suicide prevention and self-harm reduction.

 Members were advised that the plans were closely aligned with the BNSSG strategy. 

 It was noted by Members it was positive that there was a focus on prevention.

 The closure of the wards at the Priory was noted by Members and there was a discussion about how 
the strategy intersects with the need for acute care.  Members were advised that there was close 
working relationship with the BNSSG CCG, and the need for in-patient beds, including for young 
people, was taken seriously and would be pursued. 

 Members were advised that beds were commissioned by NHS England, and so was a national issue, 
but meetings had been undertaken with NHS England and the CCG about the matter.

 It was noted that the Health Scrutiny Committee (Sub-Committee of the People Scrutiny Commission) 
had received a briefing on the issue of acute care and availability of beds. 

 The Commission enquired about availability of support for the Council’s workforce, and Members were 
advised that, within the Thriving at Work stream, there had been collaboration with the Council’s 
Health & Wellbeing Manager to ensure appropriate services and training were available for staff; 
Council staff also have access to support through the Employee Assistance Programme. 

 There was a discussion about mental health resource within schools, and Members were advised that 
there was a series of funding and teams would be trained and ready to work in schools.  

 Members were advised that commissioned services would include counsellors undertaking 1:1 with 
children in schools. These teams would be established and services available by the beginning of 2022. 

 Members were advised that the strategy rightly had a lot of focus on Black, Asian, Minority Ethnic 
communities; and also on older people and those with disabilities – including having specific related 
criteria for community grants applications.  There had been several applications received from groups 
representing older people and disabled people. 

 The Mental Health at Work Commitment was discussed and Members were advised that, following the 
Stevenson/Farmer Review of Mental Health and Employers report in 2017, 25 organisations were 

Page 12

http://intranet.bcc.lan/ccm/navigation/support-services/occupational-health-and-counselling/employee-assistance-programme--eap-/


democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

brought together into the Thriving at Work Leadership Council which had developed the Mental Health 
at Work commitment. Thrive at Work Bristol worked with local businesses to encourage City-wide sign 
up to the commitment and implementation of the standards, to create mentally healthy workplaces in 
Bristol. 

 It was agreed that Members would receive further details to inform any more questions and to help 
communicate the commitment to businesses across Bristol.

RESOLVED;

That;

 The Commission noted the report;

 The Commission receive details of how waiting lists are monitored, including detail and 
explanation of the range of metrics created;

 The Commission receive information about the Employee Assistance Programme and mental 
health support for the Council workforce;

 The Commission request further details from the BNSSG Mental Health Cell (COVID-19 Response) 
about how older people and people with disabilities negatively affected by Covid-19 are identified 
and supported;

 The Commission receive further information about the Mental Health at Work Commitment and 
Members communicate to businesses across the city.

12.Work Programme

The Commission noted the Work Programme.

Meeting ended at 4.20 pm

CHAIR  __________________

Page 13

https://www.mentalhealthatwork.org.uk/leadershipcouncil/
https://www.mentalhealthatwork.org.uk/commitment/
https://www.mentalhealthatwork.org.uk/commitment/


People Scrutiny Commission Action Tracker v3 Updated 4-12-20

1

 

People Scrutiny Commission Action Tracker 2020-21

Ref Agenda item Action Responsible 
Officer / Member

Status 

27th February 2020

a 7. Performance Commission to be provided with an update regarding 
the data relating to ‘NEET and destination unknown’.

Director of 
Education & Skills - 
Alison Hurley

IN PROGRESS

Member briefing to be scheduled 

b 8. SEND Evidence Day 
findings and 
recommendations

Director of Education & Skills provide a written 
response to the report.

Director of 
Education & Skills – 
Alison Hurley

IN PROGRESS

Report to be taken to People Scrutiny 
Commission 14th December 2020

22nd October 2020

c 4. Annual Business 
Report

Election of a Vice-Chair Scrutiny Advisor, 
Dan Berlin  / Chair 

IN PROGRESS 

Deferred to 14th December, after the Party 
Group Leads had provided guidance on the 
role of Deputy Cabinet Member

d 4. Annual Business 
Report

Invite nominations for statutory education co-optee 
vacancies

Scrutiny Advisor,   
Dan Berlin

COMPLETED

Invitations for nominations have been sent.

Bristol City Council

People Scrutiny Commission 14th December 2020
Action Tracker

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 6



People Scrutiny Commission Action Tracker v3 Updated 4-12-20

2

Ref Agenda item Action Responsible 
Officer / Member

Status 

e 8. Public Health Update Health Scrutiny Committee (sub-committee of the 
People Scrutiny Commission) invite the NHS to 
provide an update on the heath system response.

Scrutiny Advisor, 
Dan Berlin / Chair 
of Health Scrutiny 
Committee

IN PROGRESS 

Invitation has been made for NHS to provide 
an update at the next scheduled Joint Health 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

f 9. Performance Report 
Q1

The Commission receive more detailed information 
regarding the processing of EHCP applications (refer 
to BCPB225).

Director of 
Education & Skills, 
Alison Hurley

COMPLETED

Information available at the link below:
https://opendata.bristol.gov.uk/explore/data
set/ehcp/information/ 

Circulated to Members.

g 9. Performance Report 
Q1

The Commission receive a breakdown of data by ward 
relating to the breastfeeding rates (referring to 
DPEC123).

David Thomas, 
Senior PH 
Intelligence Analyst

COMPLETED

EAP information circulated to Members

h 9. Performance Report 
Q1

Examples of training resources, including films online, 
be shared with the Commission.

Director for 
Children, Families 
and Safer 
Communities

IN PROGRESS

i 9. Performance Report 
Q1

A Member briefing be requested to provide further 
information and context about how the Council 
approached the need to improve the number of 
adults in low pay work & receiving benefits accessing 
in-work support (reference to BCPC268).

Scrutiny Advisor
Dan Berlin

IN PROGRESS

P
age 15

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fopendata.bristol.gov.uk%2Fexplore%2Fdataset%2Fehcp%2Finformation%2F&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70e15a4ba82143c973da08d8921cf64e%7C6378a7a50f214482aee0897eb7de331f%7C0%7C0%7C637420000372114451%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=MA0t%2Fci%2BJPTtK4%2FN8Ixg84E1DZ6My34r7j2e49rGs9c%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fopendata.bristol.gov.uk%2Fexplore%2Fdataset%2Fehcp%2Finformation%2F&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70e15a4ba82143c973da08d8921cf64e%7C6378a7a50f214482aee0897eb7de331f%7C0%7C0%7C637420000372114451%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=MA0t%2Fci%2BJPTtK4%2FN8Ixg84E1DZ6My34r7j2e49rGs9c%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fopendata.bristol.gov.uk%2Fexplore%2Fdataset%2Fehcp%2Finformation%2F&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70e15a4ba82143c973da08d8921cf64e%7C6378a7a50f214482aee0897eb7de331f%7C0%7C0%7C637420000372114451%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=MA0t%2Fci%2BJPTtK4%2FN8Ixg84E1DZ6My34r7j2e49rGs9c%3D&reserved=0


People Scrutiny Commission Action Tracker v3 Updated 4-12-20

3

Ref Agenda item Action Responsible 
Officer / Member

Status 

j 11. Mental Health 
Strategy

The Commission receive details of how waiting lists 
are monitored, including detail and explanation of the 
range of metrics created.

Public Health 
Consultant

IN PROGRESS

k 11. Mental Health 
Strategy

The Commission receive information about the 
Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) and mental 
health support for the Council workforce.

Public Health 
Consultant

COMPLETED

EAP information circulated to Members

l 11. Mental Health 
Strategy

The Commission request further details from the 
BNSSG Mental Health Cell (COVID-19 Response) about 
how older people and people with disabilities 
negatively affected by Covid-19 are identified and 
supported.

Public Health 
Consultant

IN PROGRESS

P
age 16



People Scrutiny Commission 14 December 2020

People Scrutiny Commission 

14 December 2020 

Report of: Director of Public Health

Title: The Council’s response and plans to address the disproportionate impact of 
Covid-19 on BAME communities.

Ward: ALL
Authors:  Steph Champion, Community Cohesion and Equalities Officer; 

Carol Slater, Health Equity Lead

Officer Presenting Report:   Carol Slater
Contact Telephone Number:  07990566120

Recommendation:

To review and endorse the plans and priorities described in this paper.

To provide feedback and guidance on the progress and next steps. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 9



People Scrutiny Commission 14 December 2020

1. Summary

The report focuses the actions taken by council in response to the reports highlighting the 
disproportionate impact on black, Asian and minority ethnic communities. 

It includes:
• Commissioned a review on the impact of Covid-19 on Black, Asian and Ethnic Minority 

Communities
• Established the Race Equality Covid-19 Steering Group 
• Created an Outbreak management
• Developed Community Engagement with Black, Asian and minority ethnic Communities
• Focus on Health Equity
• Increased availability of data

2.  Policy

The report refers to the following strategies and policies:
 One City Plan
 House of Commons Women’s & Equalities Committee: Coronavirus (Covid-19-) Inquiry
 Bristol City Council’s Equality and Inclusion Policy and Strategy 2018-2023
 Economic Growth and renewal Strategy
 Outbreak management plan

This is also based on research reports which: 

 ARC West rapid review on the disproportionate impact of Covid-19 on BAME communities (BRR)

 Public Health England report: COVID-19: understanding the impact on BAME communities (PHE)

3.  Public Sector Equality Duty

3a) Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decision-maker 
considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following “protected 
characteristics”: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion 
or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the 
need to:

i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under 
the Equality Act 2010.

ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, 
to the need to --

- remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic;

Page 18

https://arc-w.nihr.ac.uk/news/arc-west-rapid-review-explores-disproportionate-impact-of-covid-19-on-black-asian-and-minority-ethnic-communities/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-understanding-the-impact-on-bame-communities


People Scrutiny Commission 14 December 2020

- take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
that are different from the needs of people who do not share it (in relation to disabled 
people, this includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons' 
disabilities);

- encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in 
any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and 
those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to –

- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.

3b) The work outlined in this report has its basis in the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED). The 
actions that have been undertaken look to eliminate discrimination. We are particularly looking 
at developing work to address harassment and victimisation through working with SARI on 
developing a project to support front line workers who are experiencing Covid-related hate 
crime. 

As much as possible, we have ensured that the policy recommendations have been adopted by 
established boards and mechanisms, and that Race Equality isn’t seen as an ‘add on’. Achieving 
race equality is a fundamental step a civilised society and must be built into existing strategy 
and delivery plans. In this way we are committed to having due regard to tackling prejudice and 
promote understanding between groups. 

This is based on a report on inequalities. It wholeheartedly embodies the PSED.

Appendices:
People Scrutiny Commission Report 

 

Page 19



People Scrutiny Commission Report 14th December 2020 

1

The Council’s Response and Plans to Address the Disproportionate Impact of Covid-19 
on Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic Communities

Introduction

The purpose of this paper is to set out the Council’s response and plans to address the 
disproportionate impact of Covid-19 on Black, Asian and minority ethnic communities; the evidence 
base used; the role of the working groups, and the public input.

Bristol City Council has published an Equality and Inclusion strategy 2018-2023. In this, we recognised 
that many people in Bristol are held back because of significant inequality, discrimination and lack of 
opportunity connected to one or more of the characteristics that are protected under the Equality Act 
2010. There is clear evidence that the advent of Covid-19 has exacerbated these highlighted 
inequalities.

There are 5 objectives that we have committed to make Bristol a fairer city. 

1. Our handling of equality and inclusion will reach the high standards we expect of ourselves and 
others will look to us as a source of good practice.

2. To build an inclusive organisation where the workforce reflects the city we serve and the needs 
of all citizens, and where colleagues feel confident about being themselves at work.

3. To provide inclusive services which actively address inequality and exclusion and enable all of 
Bristol’s citizens to realise their potential and live safely.

4. To achieve a measurable increase in the extent to which communities facing inequality can 
contribute and share in the city’s success.

5. Progressive building of good relationships between different communities in Bristol so everyone 
is able to participate and contribute.

Rapid Review – Impact of Covid-19 on Black, Asian and Ethnic Minority Communities. 

In April 2020 Deputy Mayor Cllr Asher Craig and the Mayor of Bristol Marvin Rees asked Public Health to 
commission a rapid review to assess why the risk of death from Covid-19 is higher among black, Asian 
and minority ethnic than the white population in Bristol. This was undertaken by ARC West to under 
their Covid-19 Rapid review programme.  The report, led by Dr Loubaba Mamluk and Dr Tim Jones, 
explores why this is the case and offers a summary of policy recommendations that could help reduce 
these health inequalities. 

The researchers found a complex mixture of factors, including being poorer, where people live, 
overcrowded housing, types of job, other illnesses and access to health services, all influenced black, 
Asian and minority ethnic communities’ outcomes. No one factor alone could explain all the disparities 
found.

Recommendations that the review uncovered include:

 ensuring adequate income protection for those in low paid or precarious employment, so workers 
can follow quarantine recommendations

Page 20



People Scrutiny Commission Report 14th December 2020 

2

 reducing occupational risks, such as providing appropriate personal protective equipment (PPE)
 providing culturally and linguistically appropriate public health, developed with affected 

communities and tailored to culturally specific challenges, such as preventing transmission in 
overcrowded households or shielding vulnerable people in multigenerational households

 removing NHS charges during this public health emergency could ensure that no migrant or 
individual from a Black, Asian And Minority Ethnic group delays seeking healthcare and risks death 
through fear of being charged for their NHS care

The authors of the rapid review will present their findings to the 14 December People Scrutiny 
Committee, and this paper sets out the action plan responding to their findings.  

As an immediate response to the findings of the ARC West Rapid Review, and the national Public Health 
England reports, a dedicated Race Equality Covid-19 Steering Group was established, chaired by Cllr 
Asher Craig, Deputy Mayor and Dr Jo Brooks, consultant paediatrician Sirona Healthcare. 

Race Equality Covid-19 Steering Group 

The purpose of the group is to provide leadership at a city-wide level to ensure Bristol delivers in 
effectively tackling the issues and challenges of race inequality relating to Covid-19 and take action to 
implement the recommendations of the rapid review.  The group includes a wide range of around 20 
health and black, Asian and minority ethnic organisations or those working with black, Asian and 
minority ethnic communities in Bristol. A full list of members can be found here: Bristol Race Equality 
Covid-19 Steering Group - bristol.gov.uk

Links to the reports are here: 

 ARC West rapid review on the disproportionate impact of Covid-19 on Black, Asian and minority 

ethnic communities (BRR)

 Public Health England report: COVID-19: understanding the impact on Black, Asian and minority 
ethnic communities (PHE)

The Race Equality Covid-19 Steering Group provides a platform for sharing and co-ordinating work 
already underway across the city, and since the group formed in May 2020, we have hosted; 

 Dr. Loubaba Mamluk and Dr. Tim Jones – Presenting the ARC West report
 Adwoa Webber (CCG) Healthier Together- Health Inequalities 
 Mohammed Elsharif (Bristol City Council) Bristol Outbreak Management Engagement Plan – 

Black Asian and minority ethnic and disabled communities
 Alex Ward-Booth (CCG) – Citizens Panel and Listening Events
 Carol Slater – The Flu Vaccine and Black Minority ethnic people. 
 Sibusio Tshabalala, (Black South West Network) – Supporting Black, Asian and minority ethnic 

businesses
 Dr. Harleen Kaur - Indirect Racial Discrimination in COVID-19 Ethical Guidance
 Andrew Mallin (Bristol City Council) Public Sector Race Equality Covid-19 data collation
 Jacqui Marshall (North Bristol NHS Trust) – Red Card to Racism
 James Durie (Bristol Economy Board - Co-Chair) – Inclusive Economic Strategy

Page 21

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/mayor/bristol-race-equality-covid-19-steering-group
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/mayor/bristol-race-equality-covid-19-steering-group
https://arc-w.nihr.ac.uk/news/arc-west-rapid-review-explores-disproportionate-impact-of-covid-19-on-black-asian-and-minority-ethnic-communities/
https://arc-w.nihr.ac.uk/news/arc-west-rapid-review-explores-disproportionate-impact-of-covid-19-on-black-asian-and-minority-ethnic-communities/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-understanding-the-impact-on-bame-communities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-understanding-the-impact-on-bame-communities


People Scrutiny Commission Report 14th December 2020 

3

At the outset, a number of task and finish groups, were established to implement the recommendations 
set out in the rapid review, overseen by the Steering Group. Where possible, these have been adopted 
by existing boards and groups to deliver as part of their work streams and embed in the strategic and 
operational work of the Council.

Theme 1 – Income Protection
Recommendations BRR1. Ensure adequate income protection for those in low paid or precarious 

employment (so workers can follow quarantine recommendations).

Progress to date Developed the Inclusive Growth and Recovery Strategy with reference to the 
disproportionate impact that Covid-19 has had on Black, Asian and minority 
ethnic communities and businesses. 

Work on The Real Living Wage has been active in including the Care sector and 
Black, Asian and minority ethnic organisations in the conversation regards paying 
a Living Wage, with reference to high numbers of Black, Asian and minority ethnic 
people working in the care sector. 

On 28th September, the government released the income support Test and Trace 
Payment Support Scheme. A communications plan was developed to ensure this 
information is heard by Black, Asian and minority ethnic businesses and those in 
precarious employment. 

Theme 2 – Reducing Occupational Risk
Recommendations BRR2. Reducing occupational risks (e.g. providing appropriate PPE) 

PHE4. Accelerate the development of culturally competent occupational risk 
assessment tools that can be employed in a variety of occupational settings and 
used to reduce the risk of employee’s exposure to and acquisition of COVID-19, 
especially for key workers working with a large cross section of the general public 
or in contact with those infected with COVID-19.

Progress to date This work has been supported by the Race Equality Strategic Leaders Group and 
has provided a detailed data piece on the impact of Covid-19 on Black, Asian and 
minority ethnic staff working in public sector settings. All Public Sector 
organisations participated in a survey responding to the impacts and action in 
areas of occupational risk.  This survey will be repeated in the spring 2021.

Chief Executives of all local NHS trusts and the local authority have written to 
their staff and put in place systems for individual risk assessments and support.

Theme 3 – Public Health Communication
Recommendations BRR3. Providing culturally and linguistically appropriate public health 

communications. This should be developed with affected communities and 
tailored to culturally specific challenges, such as preventing transmission in 
overcrowded households or shielding vulnerable people in multigenerational 
households.

PHE5. Fund, develop and implement culturally competent COVID-19 education 
and prevention campaigns, working in partnership with local Black, Asian and 

Page 22



People Scrutiny Commission Report 14th December 2020 

4

minority ethnic and faith communities 

PHE6. Accelerate efforts to target culturally competent health promotion and 
disease prevention programmes for non-communicable diseases.

Progress to date In response to the disproportionate impact on Black, Asian and minority ethnic 
people, Bristol City Council have invested in an engagement plan including 
recruiting specific people to lead on Black, Asian and minority ethnic and disabled 
people’s engagement in relation the outbreak management plan. This is led by 
our Communities team.

BCC communications team have worked closely with Black, Asian and minority 
ethnic communities and organisations to deliver inclusive public health 
communication including:

 Translated video messages for our Somali, Polish, Bengali, Arabic, Punjabi 
and Urdu communities on the guidance for the month long lockdown in 
November. The first three published (Polish, Somali and Arabic have 
received over 1000 views). 

 Social media messaging and application form about the test & trace 
support payment scheme pushed out to at least 9 Black, Asian and 
minority ethnic groups in Bristol including Somali Resource Centre, Talo, 
Black South West Network, Refugee women of Bristol, Voscur, Pakistani 
organization, Sudanese organization, Zimbabwean organization, Faith 
groups

 ‘What I miss most’ lockdown campaign persuading everybody to adhere 
to the rules throughout lockdown to get the city up and running again. 

 Partner organisations (Bristol Muslim Strategic Leadership Group and Community 
Access Support Services) have also adopted this policy recommendation by 
creating translated materials including videos on mental health, [put links in to 
the documents and videos etc http://ow.ly/tQF350BezGf]

CCG has worked collaboratively with Bristol City Council to ensure that the impact 
of COVID-19 on our local black, Asian and minority ethnic communities is 
recognised and effectively responded to within our healthcare response. 
Key specific steps taken:

 Listening Event in partnership with Bristol Women’s Voice, the 
Community Access Support Service (CASS), Ladders4Action, Nilaari and 
Bristol Muslim Strategic Leadership Group (BMSLG). 40 attendees shared 
their experiences and concerns which were shared with CCG staff to 
improve their understanding of the issues experienced.  

 Reviewed and scrutinised Equality Impact Reports across all programme 
teams to ensure that effective mitigations are in place across our 
response to the pandemic

 Worked in partnership with CASS and other community partners to 
identify the key areas of information to be shared, and which 
communities were most at risk of being excluded from messaging as a 
result of language barriers.  A number of key assets have been produced 
and distributed via community channels across the region:

o Produced a guidance video in partnership with BMSLG on staying 
safe during Covid-19 in 8 different community languages (viewed 

Page 23

http://ow.ly/tQF350BezGf
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__youtu.be_tqcUScP6MRc&d=DwMFAg&c=7libWk6qxX9UStSY0S7v0BFgllVdq90dlT-QbmNawA8&r=IhFN5ZCL6RhUUVLryNU13KDBBM2f33ciO-51a3ZiQ7IsBQi1po96vtvgtIJpYcem&m=bZsCpUEp0ETgldGRMSHi8DjDJKU4JwO18wO6-hf2_HE&s=6Lw6gQ41COJaNqIPezK7qXqbTR9khZw1E_6pHaSnXMg&e=


People Scrutiny Commission Report 14th December 2020 

5

over 2,000 times)
o Videos produced by community volunteers (with the support of 

CASS) on the topic of protecting yourself and others during Covid-
19 and also looking after your mental health and wellbeing.  
These were produced in 13 different community languages 
(viewed over 2,000 times)

o Further videos and messages in multiple community languages 
have been produced around the 5th November lockdown 
changes, access to health and wellbeing services and flu 
vaccinations

 We have also worked in partnership with a local radio station, Ujima, which 
has a listenership which over-indexes within the Black, Asian and minority 
ethnic community.  We jointly produced 13 shows with CCG spokespeople, 
covering a range of relevant topics including how to access healthcare 
services, focussing on Mental Health, Test and Trace and a focus on specific 
health topics, such as heart conditions, stroke, diabetes and cervical cancer 
screening.

Theme 4 – Migrant experience of health care
Recommendations BRR 4. The removal of all NHS charges during this public health emergency could 

ensure that no migrant or individual from a Black, Asian and minority ethnic 
group delays seeking healthcare and risks death through fear of being charged for 
their NHS care. Somerset Foundation Trust recently included Black, Asian and 
minority ethnic staff in its vulnerable and at risk group. 

Progress to date A paper prepared by Anne James with input from David Barclay, Anne Gachango, 
Mary Griggs and others was presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board.  The 
paper focused on migrant and refugee health, inclusion, navigating health issues, 
naval spray, language barriers, challenges, charging detriment in receiving large 
health bills resettled refugees, up to £20,000.  Recommendation is to set up a 
task group to look into the suggestions, developing shared policies.  There is 
broad recognition that the Board is taking these issues seriously. 

Theme 5 – Reducing Health Inequalities
Recommendations RR5. Ethnic groups should be included in health inequalities work with senior 

leadership of this agenda.

PHE7. Ensure that COVID-19 recovery strategies actively reduce inequalities 
caused by the wider determinants of health to create long term sustainable 
change. Fully funded, sustained and meaningful approaches to tackling ethnic 
inequalities must be prioritised.

Progress to date CCG and Healthier Together are ensuring ongoing engagement with system 
leaders with regards to Black, Asian and minority ethnic people in the BNSSG 
system’s Phase 3 plan to NHS England / Improvement.

This work has been integrated with the Healthier Together Population Health and 
Health Inequality programme.

Theme 6 – Black, Asian and minority ethnic representation in staff and leadership
Recommendations There should be good representation of Black, Asian and minority ethnic 

Page 24

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.youtube.com_playlist-3Flist-3DPLCnBBaWxNNLXqxJoWGxes6i4fS3V4PF6i&d=DwMFAg&c=7libWk6qxX9UStSY0S7v0BFgllVdq90dlT-QbmNawA8&r=IhFN5ZCL6RhUUVLryNU13KDBBM2f33ciO-51a3ZiQ7IsBQi1po96vtvgtIJpYcem&m=bZsCpUEp0ETgldGRMSHi8DjDJKU4JwO18wO6-hf2_HE&s=9pvsO5AkScbrMd2d4D6Ww0agCtQB0WP9iuCE_K2_6Ts&e=


People Scrutiny Commission Report 14th December 2020 

6

communities in staff and leadership, and regular equity audits
Progress to date This policy recommendation has been adopted by the Race Equality HR strategic 

leaders group. Following the recent data piece, we have ethnicity data for 13 
public sector orgs in Bristol for staff and at board and senior manager level. Local 
organisations have committed to increasing diversity among senior leaders and 
board members.

Additionally, work is underway to:
Share good practice and benchmarking in representation and recruitment. 

Theme 7 Ethnicity Data Collection and Recording
Recommendations BRR 7. Data should be collected and reported by ethnicity to understand local 

needs and whether they are being met, and take into account ethnic patterning 
in residential, income, educational, and occupational profiles. 

PHE1 Mandate comprehensive and quality ethnicity data collection and recording 
as part of routine NHS and social care data collection systems, including the 
mandatory collection of ethnicity data at death certification, and ensure that data 
are readily available to local health and care partners to inform actions to 
mitigate the impact of COVID-19 on Black, Asian and minority ethnic 
communities. 

PHE2. Support community participatory research, in which researchers and 
community stakeholders engage as equal partners in all steps of the research 
process, to understand the social, cultural, structural, economic, religious, and 
commercial determinants of COVID-19 in Black, Asian and minority ethnic 
communities, and to develop readily implementable and scalable programmes to 
reduce risk and improve health outcomes. 

Progress to date Through representation by Association of Directors of Public Health ethnicity data 
is now included in Pillar 2 (community) testing data.  Over 75% of people are 
declaring ethnicity and this is included in daily public Health report.  In Bristol 
around 25% of those tested report being from a Black, Asian or Minority ethnic 
group.   

We have been able to increase the ethnicity data available to us for positive and 
negative pillar 1 tests (Hospital) through working with Southmead hospital and 
are working with BRI to do the same. 

We understand that ethnicity is due to be added to death certification.  This is a 
longstanding national issue.

We are using that information at a ward level to focus on specific areas where we 
can see trends eg. for working age adults and where are seeing increased levels 
of infection. We have increased the immediacy of the data which has enabled us 
to use the Covid-19 marshals, the environmental health and police to work 
together to provide support and enforcement on a street by street level. There is 
a weekly task group that reviews the action plan that has arisen from this data 
and decides where to focus work. 

A research bid is in development which will focus on participatory research.

Page 25



People Scrutiny Commission Report 14th December 2020 

7

Wider aspects of the Bristol City Council response to address the disproportionate impact of Covid-19 

Outbreak management

The outbreak management plan identifies the need for deep and meaningful engagement with all 
sectors with particular attention to communities at higher risk from harm and where there has shown to 
be disproportionate negative impact. 
This includes Black, Asian and minority ethnic communities including gypsy and traveller communities, 
disabled people and neighbourhoods where there is greatest inequality due to poverty and very low 
incomes. 

Community Engagement with Black, Asian and minority ethnic Communities

Work with community organisations to establish a network of community champions 

The role of the community champion is to facilitate a two-way flow of information, connecting with 
communities in ways which are accessible, relevant and trusted. We are using social media and face to 
face engagement. Community Champions are 'of' their communities and well connected – we will seek 
to grow the Community Champions network over time. They are trained in Asset Based Community 
Development and in anti-discriminatory practice. Community champions identify areas of concern, 
questions that need addressing or opportunities for collaboration the City Council will respond 
positively - our aim is to build a positive working relationship. 

1. Black, Asian and minority ethnic community champions. Initially working with 10 organisations 
reflecting priority Black, Asian and minority ethnic communities. Groups are respected with deep 
connections into their communities.  
2. Disabled community champions. We would expect this network to connect with Black Disabled 
people. 
3. Neighbourhoods where there is greatest inequality where there is little or no existing voluntary 
infrastructure. We would expect this to connect with Black, Asian and minority ethnic communities 
living in the area. 

Outreach and engagement work in Ashley, Easton and Lawrence Hill 
The Community Development Team has strong community connections in the inner-city wards. Work 
has included:

 Working with community champions to connect with parents of school age children and raise 
awareness of key public health messages

 Working with tenants from the flats in Barton Hill to facilitate dialogue with housing
 Supporting awareness raising with businesses and local people along Stapleton Road and 

Lawrence Hill 

Faith leaders - Facilitated meeting with Faith Leaders including dedicated meetings with Mosque 
leaders resulting in mosques all agreeing not to open during the second wave.

Support the development of Black, Asian and minority ethnic led community hubs - providing 
volunteer/community response to citizens needing support 

Page 26



People Scrutiny Commission Report 14th December 2020 

8

Organise and attend dedicated weekly meetings of Black, Asian and minority ethnic-led community 
and voluntary organisations -to share information, recognise the important work of Black, Asian and 
minority ethnic -led VCSE organisations 

Volunteer Recruitment - positive action to recruit Black, Asian and minority ethnic volunteers including 
people who can speak community languages.

Contact & Welfare Service - recruiting a team which will include people who speak the key community 
languages (Somali, Urdu, Arabic) from the start.

Covid-19 has highlighted the effectiveness of community leadership, ownership and action on tackling 
the pandemic, illustrated by fantastic community actions and initiatives.  The community response to 
Covid-19 through Can Do Bristol is phenomenal. Community-led organisations, resident-led groups and 
community hubs have played a leading role in both supporting residents but also preventing the spread 
of the virus in the city. Examples include; 

- Stapleton Road Covid-19 Community Protection Group - explained and reinforced social 
distancing and helped business in their approach

-  residents and sewing groups making face-coverings and Perspex masks as well as the passing of 
information and advice through What’s App groups. 

The Community Development team has established trusted working relationships with communities 
across Bristol particularly in place-based communities. Our outbreak management model builds on the 
Public Health models of Health and Community Champions which have worked in Bristol and in other 
cities. 

Health Equity

In October, we recruited a Health Equity Lead in recognition of the need for senior leadership reflective 
of Bristol’s diverse community and as part of the response to this and other Council reports. 
The communications team have co-produced a range of materials indifferent formats to support these 
community initiatives.  Examples include videos we have produced during lockdown in different 
languages (a playlist on the Council YouTube page) https://www.youtube.com/channel/UChYwQT6nK-
mPU3K8bYsZ17g.  We are currently producing new ones based on Bristol’s move to tier 3.
 

 A Facebook Ad campaign to target wards of high prevalence
 Last week key messaging for Head teachers was produced to share with parents in schools in 

high prevalence areas, also in different languages, disseminated by the Education team.
 Through our ongoing “Can Do Bristol” Volunteer Recruitment Campaign we have produced 

social graphics and posters in different languages, for community hubs to use and share to 
recruit bilingual volunteers including Bengali, Kurdish, Mandarin, Arabic, Polish, Punjabi, Somali 
and Urdu

Page 27

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UChYwQT6nK-mPU3K8bYsZ17g
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UChYwQT6nK-mPU3K8bYsZ17g


People Scrutiny Commission Report 14th December 2020 

9

Data

The public health intelligence team have built an integrated data model which provides ward by ward 
detailed analysis of trends in Covid-19 transmission, which is being utilised to focus targeted activity in 
specific areas, including Lawrence Hill, Bishopston and Avonmouth. This has enabled community 
champions, Covid-19marshals to work in partnership with environmental health and the police 
providing information, practical support, and enforcement where needed to increase understanding 
and encourage compliance in the geographical areas of highest risk. Daily reports analysing trends are 
monitored daily and a twice weekly detailed report is published on the BCC website. The graphics below 
reflect data for the week ending 25 November 2020. 

 

Next Steps

 Whilst we have an understanding of the organisational quantitative data approach to risk 
management in the workplace, we know that there has been a rise in Covid-19 related hate 
crime and additional work is needed: we are keen to understand the experiences of Black, Asian 
and minority ethnic people. There is evidence of an increase in hate crime for front line workers 
– they need support. We want to support the creation of this and are supporting the University 
of Bristol to apply for funding to carry out some research and to support the delivery of some 
support sessions with therapeutic intervention.  

 Bristol City Council is committed to updating our Accessibility policy to reflect culturally 
competent communication. 

Page 28



People Scrutiny Commission Report 14th December 2020 

10

 A proposal has been developed to apply for funding to investigate the impact of healthcare 
charging on migrants and their communities through UKRI. This will be a research project in 
partnership with University of Bristol, Bristol Refugee Rights and other key partners within the 
city.

 In the light of two new reports on young people (Babbasa Bridge to Equality and the Somali 
Youth Voice Impact of Covid-19 on the Somali community, both published in October 2020) we 
will build implementation of the recommendations in to the work of the task and finish groups, 
and in wider council operational plans where appropriate.

Conclusion

A wide range of work is underway to address the disproportionate impact of Covid-19 on black, Asian 
and minority ethnic communities in Bristol, and the examples provided within this paper are not 
exhaustive. 

In addition to the programmes of work set out here, our overall objective is to identify how we can 
better support these groups of people in our population. We have set out this ambition in our One City 
plan and would value views from members of the Committee to help us shape how we take this 
significant work forward in terms of long term impact.

Recommendations

 The committee is asked; 

 To review and endorse the plans and priorities described in this paper 

 To provide further advice on how we achieve and accelerate delivery of reducing the 
disproportionate impact of Covid-19 in health inequalities for people from Black, Asian and 
minority ethnic communities in Bristol.

Page 29



People Scrutiny Commission 14 December 2020 

 

 

 

The Council’s response and plans to address the 
disproportionate impact of Covid-19 on Black, Asian and 

minority ethnic communities 

 

 

Carol Slater, Health Equity Lead 

Bristol City Council 

 

 

 

 
P

age 30



Overview 

 

 Equality and Inclusion strategy published 2018-2023 –
recognised significant inequality & lack of opportunity 

 

 Covid 19 has exacerbated this 

 

 Mayor commissioned rapid review – presented today 

 

 Actions following the review and progress to date are 
set out in the commission paper 

 

 

P
age 31



Key points 

 Race Equality Steering Group, Chaired by the Deputy 
Mayor established June 2020 – policy recommendation 
implementation oversight 

 

 Huge commitment from the community in taking 
forward plans 

 

 Task group actions are embedded in the operational 
and strategic work of the council to ensure delivery 

 

 

 

P
age 32



Headlines 

 Plans started with evidence and data - key 

 

 Advent of Covid 19 has expedited activity and actions 

 

 New models of data have highlighted consistent ward 
level information  

 

 Informed the work of the council teams in targeting 
support and action in partnership with community 

 

P
age 33



 Built an integrated data model which provides ward by ward 
detailed analysis of trends in Covid 19 transmission 

 

 Enabled community champions, Covid marshals to work in 
partnership with environmental health and the police 

 

 Providing information, practical support,  and enforcement 
where needed 

 

 Daily reports analysing trends are monitored daily and a twice 
weekly detailed report is published on the BCC website 

 

P
age 34



PEOPLE Directorate 

Action underway – Examples 

 

 Focus on Barton Hill/Lawrence Hill, Avonmouth/Laurence Weston; plan for 
multi-agency task force 

 Combination of  speaking to  & working with people outside schools, cafes, 
housing blocks, & social media - communications in Urdu  & Punjabi 

 Work with schools mainly Somali/ Sudanese families  & with the Pakistani 
community - throughout the half term holiday with community champions 
from the Somali /Sudanese communities  and key leaders targeting 
population around the school including business with messaging on testing 
and social distancing and self-isolating – reduced infection rates  

 Meeting with Director of Public Health and faith leaders including imams and 
using local community social media to spear the message. 

 Focus on local businesses – Covid marshals x16; visibility on buses, social 
isolation & face coverings advice, not legal enforcement but can refer to 
police re non compliance 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 35



PEOPLE Directorate 

Recommendations 

 The committee is asked to;  
 

  Review and endorse the plans and priorities described 
in this paper 
 

 Provide further advice on how we achieve and 
accelerate delivery of reducing the disproportionate 
impact of Covid-19 in health inequalities for people 
from Black, Asian and minority ethnic communities in 
Bristol. 

P
age 36



People Scrutiny December 2020 – Temple Quarter Update

People Scrutiny Commission 

14th December 2020 

Report of: Alison Hurley – Director, Education and Skills 

Title: Temple Quarter – Free School Update  

Ward: All

Officer Presenting Report:   Alison Hurley

Contact Telephone Number:  0117 9224682

Recommendation:

That the Commission note the report

The significant issues in the report are:

Update on the progress for the proposed new secondary provision as part of the wider 
Silverthorne Lane development plan. 

Clarification on the arrangements for meeting Year 7 sufficiency in 2021

Page 37

Agenda Item 10



People Scrutiny December 2020 – Temple Quarter Update

1. Summary

The planned development of the third secondary free school at Temple Quarter continues to 
experience delays and will not be opening in temporary accommodation for September 2021.   
The ongoing issues with the general planning approval of Silverthorne Lane, which the school 
is also subject to, means that the Department for Education (DfE) is unable to progress until 
planning consent is fully approved.

The decision in August 2020, by Bristol City Council (BCC), to approve the planning application 
was a positive step, however, an objection from the Environment Agency resulted in an 
“Article 31 Holding Direction” being issued, which means the Secretary of State for Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) needs more time to consider the case and could 
potentially ‘call in’ the scheme, which could result in a lengthy Public Inquiry. 

The DfE confirmed on 17th September that it can only pursue opening the new school in 
temporary accommodation once there is certainty of delivery for the permanent scheme and 
planning permission has been secured.  As planning permission has not yet been secured, a 
provisional opening date has not been confirmed for Oasis Academy Temple Quarter.

Although BCC is not the responsible body for the development or opening of new free schools, 
it does retain the statutory duty to provide sufficient school places.  There is an estimated 
shortfall of 170 Year 7 places for the East Central area for September 2021. 

Due to increased demand in Year 7 places in previous years, there is no capacity in 2021 to 
expand or provide ‘bulge’ provision, without creating temporary accommodation on the sites 
of existing secondary schools in the area.  Therefore, the proposal is to relocate the majority of 
Post 16 students from Bristol Brunel Academy (BBA) and John Cabot Academy (JCA) into an 
existing CLF academy in South Gloucestershire.  This move would enable approximately 138 
additional Year 7 places to be made available in September 2021 and make a significant 
contribution to the current shortfall.   

CLF’s strategic ambition is to create a permanent Post 16 offering within BS5, and the 
temporary arrangements for 2021-22 would support this development, using the £4.5m as an 
investment in a permanent solution as opposed to temporary.  This proposal was approved by 
Cabinet on 1st December 2020.

2. Context

Background
Bristol City Council’s ‘Integrated Education and Capital Strategy (2015-2019)’ identified the 
urgent future need for secondary places.  Pupil projections and admissions data in 2015 
showed a number of key factors that influenced the secondary sector capital strategy. The 
growth in births between 2005 and 2012 (12% rise) and the year-on-year success of secondary 
provision in the city, meant more students were attracted to Bristol’s schools. 

Page 38



People Scrutiny December 2020 – Temple Quarter Update

Projections at the time showed the numbers of year 7 children would peak by 2023 (at 4,927 
students) and thereafter was projected to reduce.  Modelling demonstrated that potentially 
35 additional forms of entry at Year 7 would be required by 2023.

Funding for new school places is provided to LAs through the allocation of Basic Need Grant. 
This takes account of the available places across all school year groups and the projected 
demand.  In recent years the Government established the Free School programme with capital 
costs of schools being met directly by Government. The contribution of places from these 
schools, reduce the requirement under Basic Need.  Applications and approvals are in ‘waves’. 
An alternative route to a new Free School is where an LA has capital available from, for 
instance, developer contributions from large housing developments. This is known as the 
‘presumption’ route. Although there has been extensive housing development, this has been 
smaller apartments that do not generate large contributions for Education.

‘Basic Need’ allocations are calculated on individual years and a standard allocation per pupil 
place required. Unless these can be saved over a number of years, they are insufficient to fund 
whole new secondary school developments, particularly where land and other costs are high. 
The allocations for Bristol were limited due to space in higher year groups and were used to 
fund the expansion of existing schools to meet the immediate need for places, with an 
expectation that new schools would be approved under the Free School programme for future 
requirements.

The Wave 12 Free School Application process commenced in 2016, with Academy Trusts 
applying to establish the three new secondary provisions across the city. This was the only 
viable option to provide the 3 new schools required in the Integrated Education and Capital 
Strategy.

Sufficiency 
The Local Authority has a statutory duty to ensure there are sufficient school places within 
Bristol (Education Act 1996 Section 14(1)). The city previously experienced a dramatic rise in 
primary school pupil numbers which is now impacting on secondary schools.  A number of 
schools have been expanded and the new Trinity Academy free school opened in 2019.  
Further free schools were approved by the Department for Education (DfE) to serve the East 
Central and South areas. 

The East Central area has already seen a large increase in demand for secondary school 
places and delays in delivering Oasis Academy Temple Quarter mean that there have been 
more pupils seeking a place than places available for the past 3 to 4 years. In order to allow 
the LA to fulfil the statutory duty to provide places, existing schools have agreed to take 
more pupils than their Published Admissions Number (PAN).  The main 3 schools serving 
East Central are Bristol Brunel Academy (BBA), Bristol Metropolitan Academy BMA) and City 
Academy.  Fairfield High and Cotham also admit significant numbers of pupils living in East 

Page 39



People Scrutiny December 2020 – Temple Quarter Update

Central, although they are located in North. Bristol Cathedral Choir School, Colston’s Girls’ 
School, and St Mary Redcliffe and Temple School have admissions policies which mean 
some pupils are admitted from East Central. 

Secondary Sufficiency – East Central 

3. Free School Guidance and Policy

The Government guidance and policy for free schools is published by the Department of 
education, available at the link below:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/free-school-application-guide 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:

 Integrated Education and Capital Strategy (2015-2019)

Page 40

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/free-school-application-guide


People Scrutiny December 2020 – SEND Update

People Scrutiny Commission 

14th December 2020 

Report of: Alison Hurley, Director of Education & Skills

Title: Bristol Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) progress report against the 
remedies identified by The People Scrutiny Commission from the Evidence Day held on 3rd February 
2020  

Ward: All

Officer Presenting Report:   Alison Hurley

Contact Telephone Number:  0117 9224682

Recommendation:

That the Commission note the report.

The significant issues in the report are:

Overview of progress since the Local Area SEND inspection in September / October 2019

Since the February update for People Scrutiny, Bristol Local Area has had two external 
monitoring meetings with Department for Education (DfE) and NHS England advisers. The first 
was the 9th July and the second the 16th November. These formal meetings take place every 
four months to enable the DfE to evaluate the progress made against the milestones set out in 
Local Area’s published ‘Written Statement of Action’ (WSoA).

Page 41

Agenda Item 11



People Scrutiny December 2020 – SEND Update

1. Summary

1.1 Summary of progress made against the July Milestones

The Covid-19 pandemic has meant that progress in some areas has been adversely impacted.  
However, as work had already commenced prior to the first lockdown, good progress was 
made against the majority of the July milestones. 

• 75% (more than 50) of the actions set out in the WSoA were achieved by July 
• 13% were partly achieved
• 12% (6 actions) were delayed or paused due to Covid-19. 

On the 9th July, DfE and NHS England advisers met with leaders from health and the council 
and the interim chair of Bristol’s Parent Carer Forum. They were satisfied that good progress 
was being made and their subsequent note of the meeting stated that: 

‘In the current Covid context, progress to date with the WSoA has been commendable. The 
focus has been on those areas that can be undertaken well during this period. Local SEND 
leaders across the statutory agencies are working effectively together and there are 
encouraging signs of wider involvement and engagement of education providers and 
parents/carers.  Although the WSoA has only been in place for approximately three months 
progress in addressing the five priorities is well underway, with systems emerging to evaluate 
the impact of actions and a strong commitment to embed an enduring inclusive culture for 
children and young people  with SEND across the City’.

A summary report of progress is available to the public on the Local Offer.

1.2 Summary of progress made against the November Milestones

Of the sixty six milestones to be achieved by November 2020, 89% have been achieved or are 
on track to be achieved during December / January.   At the time of writing, the DfE note of 
meeting is yet to be received.  However, verbal feedback was positive and progress was 
described as “very encouraging”. A summary report of progress will be published on the Local 
Offer by the end of December. 

Although there is evidence that good progress is being made against the milestones in the 
Written Statement of Action, it is important to state that improvements made thus far, tend to 
relate to data, governance and processes and therefore won’t yet be having a demonstrable 
impact on the majority of parents and carers or their children. 

Page 42



People Scrutiny December 2020 – SEND Update

2. Progress against the People Scrutiny Commission’s identified remedies 

2.1Culture, Trust and Funding  

2.1a) Scrutiny Recommendations: Communication and Engagement with Parents 

 Improved communication by the Council with children, parents and carers and partners: A 
communication and engagement framework that reflects on, and addresses attitudes, 
values, how we communicate, and how engagement and access is enabled (and 
implementing this in practice) will help achieve a cultural change and enable trust
 

 Ensure next steps include and are driven by parents and carers; and that no one is left 
feeling they do not have the opportunity to access information and services.

 We need to reach out to BAME families, those with English as a second language, and other 
‘hard to reach’ vulnerable families    . The Council should be proactive in contacting those 
families who feel they cannot engage or access services, and should widen the 
representation of voices across diverse communities in Bristol in the co-production and co-
reviewing of services.

 The Local Offer should be clearer and more accessible; ensuring it contains up-to-date 
helpful and relevant information, informed by what parents and carers say they need to 
know.  The new website should be reviewed regularly; and it should have connectivity to 
related sites.
  

2.1a) Progress

There are many examples of improved, regular communication and growing engagement and 
co-production with parent carers. For example parents are members of each of the five work 
streams in the ‘Time for Change’ project which is focused on improving all aspects of the 
Education and Health Care Plan (EHCP) process. Parent carers are working alongside managers 
and practitioners from a wide range of health, care and education services, co-designing and 
testing new ways of working. 

The team ran a parent carer survey in the spring, alongside one for children and young 
people. The summary findings and our response to these surveys are published on the Local 
Offer and were shared widely across the SEND partnership and are being used to inform 
ongoing improvements.  Another survey will run through January and February 2021, and 
ongoing twice yearly.

Page 43

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/web/bristol-local-offer/about/send-news


People Scrutiny December 2020 – SEND Update

The local offer website has been developed further to provide supportive information for 
young people, families and professionals, including a wealth of Covid-19 related guidance and 
information as well as resources for parents. Consistent messaging has been developed,  
explaining what the Local Offer is and ensuring schools’ and partners’ websites link to correct 
pages. Promotional material was produced and widely distributed including rebranding and 
replacing old flyers, which were sent to 24,000 target areas. The key focus continues on 
promoting the Local Offer to the parents, carers and children and young people in the Bristol 
community: 

 Facebook page launched with daily updates (viewed by 3,684 people in one month)
o aim to provide an easy to follow page with the latest information re: SEND 

services and specifically SEND activities in Bristol. As requested by the 
community.

 Fortnightly community newsletter launched (136 subscribers)
o aim to keep community up to date with the latest information 

 Ambassador programme launched 
o aim to remind council colleagues and our partners in health to use the site, keep 

their information up to date, improve collaborative working, share the Local 
Offer within their teams and the people they work with.
 

The Local Offer website ‘hits’ increased by 90% since August, directly linked to the newsletter 
and Facebook impact. The web pages now include videos. For instance consultation on the 
new Top Up funding was promoted via the Local Offer and a video and virtual ways of feeding 
back are available to help families understand the process. 

Covid-19 has however, reduced the capacity to fully develop engagement work, which means 
that, although all partners are focused on engagement of parent carers, activity is still 
fragmented. In recognition of this, BCC is funding a SEND local area engagement co-ordinator 
who will be responsible for producing and implementing an engagement framework for SEND 
services in Bristol. The aim is to have recruited to this post in early 2021. 

Concurrently, the Children and Families Programme Board agreed in August to progress a 
Children and Young People’s engagement and co-production mapping exercise to establish a 
baseline, identify engagement for the programme board and develop a proposal for a co-
ordinated approach to CYP engagement and co-production across Bristol North Somerset and 
South Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group (BNSSG CCG). Each partner agency has 
representation on this working group, and outputs will be brought back to Bristol’s SEND 
Partnership Group and will inform the SEND engagement framework.

Page 44

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/web/bristol-local-offer/young-people
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/web/bristol-local-offer/parents-carers
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/web/bristol-local-offer/for-professionals
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Fbristollocaloffer&data=02%7C01%7C%7C68047e5fd25e49dfae5f08d86ab557f0%7C6378a7a50f214482aee0897eb7de331f%7C0%7C0%7C637376674522902887&sdata=Se8GCRmkEhfwqMJQVN8urOvwDS1f%2FkqvfPsR%2Byg5IuM%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.bristol.gov.uk%2Fweb%2Fbristol-local-offer%2Fabout%2Fsend-news&data=02%7C01%7C%7C6f5603f53c3c4099b71808d8655ad2f6%7C6378a7a50f214482aee0897eb7de331f%7C0%7C0%7C637370788036831793&sdata=Vjtmz4FxsM4LfFxuEk0rw%2BKGQKDGVWgK5qAYZK7rPUE%3D&reserved=0


People Scrutiny December 2020 – SEND Update

2.1b) Scrutiny Recommendations: Clarity about decision making and funding

 There should be as much clarity and transparency about the process and criteria for 
decision making as possible.  

 Schools should be clear and transparent on how all SEN funding is spent. 

 The importance and profile of SEND provision and its impact on Bristol’s communities 
should be communicated across the Council’s and partners’ workforce. 

 The local funding mechanisms should be reviewed and simplified to ensure provision on the 
EHCP can be met 

2.1b) Progress

Significant pieces of work are underway to clarify decision making, provision and funding. 

The Local Offer clearly sets out the EHCP process and the Time for Change project includes the 
development of a family portal, which should be fully functioning in the summer 2021, will 
enable families to check on the progress of the an EHC needs assessment and EHC plan and 
view all associated paperwork. Alongside this development, the EHC Plan template is being 
completely redesigned with parent carers to ensure plans are needs and outcomes led, clear, 
concise and easily understood by families and professionals alike. All statutory letters are 
being redrafted with parent carers to ensure they are clear and easy to understand.  

Guidance has been drafted on what should be ordinarily available in all schools to support 
children and young people with additional educational needs. The ‘Ordinarily Available 
Provision’ (OAP) guidance is being tested and consulted on during this autumn term, including 
a group of school Special Educational Needs Coordinators (SENDCos) trialling the guidance 
with teachers and parents. 

The project is already having an impact on the language used across the local area with 
professionals in schools and education support services discussing what should be available 
under the OAP heading. 

A parallel project is focused on making the allocation of High Needs Block funding clear and 
transparent. A ‘Needs Matrix’ has been developed, aligned to the OAP guidance and reflects 
the next level of school based support in the SEND Code of Practice.  The matrix unifies 
documents across all categories of need and has been developed with specialist education and 
health professionals who have contributed to the writing of needs statements and 
identification of appropriate provision to support different levels of need.  A group of 46 
volunteer SENDCos have participated in live tutorials and had the opportunity to test the 

Page 45

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/web/bristol-local-offer/education-health-and-care-plans


People Scrutiny December 2020 – SEND Update

process and offer feedback. This feedback is currently being reviewed and will shape the 
content of the final matrix as well as assist with calibrating the funding allocation. 

This new funding allocation mechanism is anticipated to be rolled out from September 2021. 
The matrix will be used by SENDCos in mainstream schools to apply for additional funding for 
those children and young people with SEND who require more costly support. This will ensure 
a consistent and transparent approach across Bristol’s schools.   

Both these projects are contributing directly to a shared understanding of inclusion and 
language across the partnership and will provide parents with the information they need to 
understand what schools can, and should be doing to support their children’s education.

Additionally, the first suite of data relating to statutory processes has been published. This will 
be updated monthly. Dedicated work over the last year has ensured there is now a set of 
accurate and reliable data, which is being used operationally to manage demand and 
performance and strategically to monitor progress. The published data set will be extended 
over the next year in response to feedback and as confidence in the wider data increases. 

2.2Quality  

2.2a) Scrutiny Recommendations: Standards, Performance and Training

 A review of standards and what ‘good’ looks like, and roll out of agreed performance 
indicators with a clear performance management framework will help with consistency 
and quality assurance. 

 There should be a review/gap analysis of training for staff involved in SEND provision, as 
well as directly involved in the EHCP related processes (including, for example, report 
writing) provided across the Council, schools and health.   A reviewed learning and 
development plan and roll out will help improve quality, including consistency of approach, 
and improvement of communications.

 School Governor training would help clarify responsibilities and provide consistency and 
enable transparency.

2.2a) Progress

All LA SEND Assessment Team staff have received basic training in the SEND Code of Practice 
and statutory processes. The SEND Quality Assurance Framework is in place and a monthly 
audit cycle of EHCPs and Annual Reviews is now established. Monthly meetings take place with 
the SEND Team Managers to reflect on the findings of the audits. Continuing professional 

Page 46

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fopendata.bristol.gov.uk%2Fpages%2Fehc-summary%2F&data=04%7C01%7C%7C1305b468b1904acc7a2208d88c9beaff%7C6378a7a50f214482aee0897eb7de331f%7C0%7C0%7C637413948577722233%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=f4SeURlJy759jIHbMMpDgVJtSm2erPc%2B6yx3Ueuguco%3D&reserved=0


People Scrutiny December 2020 – SEND Update

development training for the SEND team is being informed by audit findings and parental 
feedback.

The SEND service manager has ensured an ongoing review of induction, caseloads and impact 
of new structure, supervision and management oversight on timeliness and quality to enable 
adjustments as necessary to sustain improvements. 

Monthly reviews of timeliness take place at operational and strategic level.  There is a weekly 
meeting between key professionals and the SEND team to review demand and capacity and 
ensure resources are allocated appropriately. 

Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) for statutory processes have been developed. These 
SOPs provide a set of step-by-step instructions to help SEND caseworkers carry out complex 
routine processes with the aim of achieving efficiency, quality output and uniformity of 
performance, while reducing miscommunication and failure to comply with key standards and 
procedures.  

Following a review and gap analysis of SEND training, a comprehensive training programme 
has been developed for professionals across the partnership. The three year development plan 
framework is complete and based on 4 areas:

1. Being a well-informed and connected SENDCo or leader of SEND (for school leaders)

2. Bristol implementation of the SEND Code of Practice and Bristol Processes for SEND such as 
Top-up funding or applying for EHC Needs Assessments

3. Identification, Assessment and intervention for SEND

4. SEND knowledge beyond school staff (Governors, Councillors, Council teams such as 
admissions)

Governor training on what is SEND part 1 and part 2 has been delivered. The first Governor 
SEND Network session has been held. Additional training for SENDCos and governors is being 
explored with the DfE’s training and support provider.

Additionally, the Council for Disabled Children are running a series of workshops from January 
to March with professionals from health, the council and schools to support the 
implementation of Bristol’s EHC Outcomes Framework, focusing on writing and evaluating 
education, health and care outcomes for children and young people.

Page 47



People Scrutiny December 2020 – SEND Update

2.2b) Scrutiny Recommendations: EHCP process and Plans

 The process should be simplified, utilising standard templates where appropriate.

 There should be clear ‘ownership’ with families provided with a team or ‘go to’ person for 
information about the process. A clear point of contact should also be available before and 
after the 20 week process.

 Reports should be concise and written in plain-English, avoiding ‘copy and pasting’ of long 
technical reports with jargon; and should be clear regarding identified need, available 
provision, and measurable outcomes.  

 Practice should be ‘child, parents, carer, and family-centred’ – ensuring they are enabled to 
have control over the process, and objectives and outcomes align with their needs.

2.2b) Progress

The EHC Plan and Process improvement work (Time for Change project) has five strands: 

 Co-designing a new EHCP template
 Improving children and young people’s voice
 Improving professional contributions through a new Professional IT Portal 
 Improving family access to their children’s SEND files through a Family Portal 
 Improving annual review – process and paperwork

The project is led by the SEND service manager via a multi-agency steering group which meets 
monthly and oversees the work of five collaborative working groups. The five working groups 
are made up of 79 regular members and a number of additional parent carers as available. 
Each working group includes at least one parent representative and a range of professionals 
from education settings, health (including community paediatrics) social care, Education 
Psychology (EP) service, SEND support and casework services as well as IT management system 
and performance leads. 

EHCP Template:

The draft proposed EHCP template has been drawn up and has been tested on the IT system. 
Following feedback from parent carers and professionals, further development was 
undertaken in October and the final template modelled.

Professional Portal:  

This will link directly into the new EHC plan template and is based on a consistent professional 
contribution form which links with the EHC Outcomes Framework ethos and language. 

Page 48



People Scrutiny December 2020 – SEND Update

Professionals will all have the same information on which to base their contribution and the 
family will only provide their story once, as the portal will share the children and young people 
and their families’ hopes, dreams, strengths and aspirations which will have been obtained 
from a person centred planning meeting and / or from the child’s voice. 

Child, young person and family voice:

The EHC Outcomes Framework will be used to ensure the 5 key questions are obtained at the 
start of the needs assessment or annual review process. The working group have also designed 
a matrix to support families and schools in improving creativity of obtaining the child and 
young person’s voice.  This input will link directly into the new EHC plan template and can be 
visual as well as in words.

Family Portal 

The initial test phase is complete. Twenty parent carers attended several workshops and their 
feedback is helping to ensure the portal uses family friendly language and is easy to use.  

Annual Reviews

Work is progressing with the SEND team and working group on improving paperwork, 
workforce development and improving quality of annual reviews and thereby the final EHC 
plan.

The work of the five groups is now being brought together and implementation is planned 
between January and June 2021:  

 Jan 2021: Implement new Annual Review workforce development package: paperwork, 
statutory duty, person centred planning meetings, improved timeliness

 March 2021: Implement new EHC plan template, children and young people voice 
matrix and new Professional Portal. New suite of letters will be available 

All of these changes will require significant stakeholder learning and development before 
implementation. Webinar workshops are being planned on each of the aspects rather than all 
topics at once, for higher impact, with the aim of starting these late January 2021 onwards

 June 2021: Family Portal introduction. This has a later implementation date to ensure 
the professional elements are all working properly and to allow plenty of time for 
rigorous testing to try to eliminate any teething troubles before launching to parents.  

Page 49



People Scrutiny December 2020 – SEND Update

Additionally, a pilot of Joint Assessment Meetings (JAM) with the child/young person/ family/ 
SENDCo/ EP/ SEND Caseworker, started in October 2020. For those EHC Needs Assessment 
(EHCNA) requests where JAM cannot be offered, an Assessment Coordinator is being allocated 
at triage stage and is offering to meet families to discuss the assessment process, and obtain 
their responses to the EHC outcomes framework questions. 

Three days of Person Centred Planning (PCP) training took place this autumn with 
representatives from across the local area. 70 people took part with more accessing the online 
recorded versions. Feedback has been overwhelmingly positive and the PCP training is being 
embedded in EHCNA processes.

2.3Meaningful partnership working 
2.3 Scrutiny Recommendations

 A review of partnerships and a published map detailing the relationships between 
education, health and care partners will provide clarity for parents and carers and also 
practitioners.

 The Council can help enable stronger relationships with and between schools.

 Schools should be encouraged and enabled to share specialisms and resources with each 
other.

 Partnerships should ensure there is a clear understanding of accountability and ownership 
of tasks, communications methods, and information sharing protocol to ensure all 
information is up-to–date and parents and carers do not need to chase unresolved issues.

2.3 Progress

Since the inspection, one of the most significant developments is that, local area leaders at all 
levels from the council, CCG, health providers and schools, have honest, and transparent 
discussions about SEND and inclusion, share data and are actively engaged in partnership 
working across all improvement work streams.  

The detailed feedback, about experience of the SEND system, from the spring parent carer and 
young people’s survey has been shared with leaders, including school leaders to raise 
awareness of parent and carers’ current concerns. Ongoing feedback obtained by Bristol’s 
Supportive Parents (SENDIAS) is shared with SENDCos in their briefings. 

Page 50



People Scrutiny December 2020 – SEND Update

The SEND Partnership Group (SPG) continues to meet four weekly and is well attended by 
operational and strategic leads across the local area. Key personnel are invited to attend for 
specific items, and agendas are well planned and include a good balance of information 
sharing, discussion and problem solving where issues are brought to the table, resolutions 
sought and joint actions agreed. 

The SEND Improvement Board continues to meet every two months and, as our data reliability 
and reports have developed, the board now has the information that it needs to hold partners 
to account. 

Relationships continue to develop and strengthen between the SEND service and health 
colleagues through email communications, the sharing of key information, attending meetings 
and by presenting at key conferences. For example, the SEND Service Manager attended a 
Community Children’s Health Partnership conference in November to talk about contributions 
to EHCPs. 

In addition to the weekly headteacher bulletin, the Director of Education and Skills hosts 
regular meetings with phase chairs; six weekly webinars for all headteachers, and termly 
governor briefings, all of which incorporate aspects relating to inclusion if they are not SEND 
specific. There has been clear leadership across the local area during the pandemic. Guidance 
on Risk Assessments, and education for vulnerable groups, including those with EHCPs, has 
been developed through Multi-Agency working groups from across health, social care and 
education, including school leaders.

The Inclusion in Education Group (IEG) is chaired by one of the school representatives on the 
SEND Partnership Group, and meets half termly. The group includes officers from Accessible 
City and SENDCos from all phases of education. IEG is working proactively with SEND partners 
on The Time for Change and Ordinarily Available Provision developments.  The SENDCos have 
a co-produced, published communication schedule to facilitate communication of key 
messages, good practise and professional development opportunities. This includes a regular 
SENDCo bulletin via the Local Offer. 

Since June, BCC’s Head of Inclusive City and the Education Partnership Manager have been 
working on the development of the Belonging in Education Strategy (BES). The BES is part of a 
suite of four strategies what will influence decision making at the Children’s and Young People 
Board, one of six thematic boards that make up the One City Plan. The three other pillars are 
Belonging from the Beginning (0 – 5), Belonging in Families and Belonging in Communities.

To influence the narrative and aims of the BES, officers made use of spring survey results that 
captured feedback from parents/carers and young people with SEND and have widely engaged 
with education partners at phase chair meetings, and across the education directorate. Whilst 

Page 51

https://www.bristolonecity.com/themes/


People Scrutiny December 2020 – SEND Update

existing information has been used to build a narrative based on the perspective of young 
people, Covid-19 has impacted the depth of this work, but this is being addressed by a survey 
this term of young people aged 11 – 19 regarding the concept of belonging in the context of 
education. Outcomes from this survey will be used to further enrich the narrative in the 
strategy, linking it to the needs of children and young people.

The key focus of the BES is strengthening social capital across the education system, focusing 
on trusting relationships, shared values and behaviours and the right structure to deliver 
collective action in relation to inclusion. Priorities relating to the three dimensions of social 
capital (relational, structural and cognitive / learning) have been tabled for consultation and 
are aligned to the Written Statement of Action.

3. Conclusions

Overall, the local area partnership has made good progress against the improvement priorities 
published in the Written Statement of Action and those identified by the People Scrutiny 
Commission. Where there has been slippage in milestone achievement this is largely 
attributable to Covid-19.

However, there is acute awareness that improvements made thus far, tend to relate to data, 
governance and processes and therefore have not yet had a demonstrable impact on the 
majority of parents and carers or their children. 

There are further methods in development, for testing parental confidence and evaluating 
impact of improvement activity on outcomes for children and young people with SEND.  The 
aim is to have sufficient data to be able to start to analyse and report on this over the next few 
months. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:

 Special Educational Needs and Disability Evidence Day: Report of the People Scrutiny 
Commission

 Written Statement of Action

Page 52



  Appendix 1: SEND Evidence Day report  

1 
 

 

Special Educational Needs and Disability Evidence Day:  
Report of the People Scrutiny Commission 
 

 
1. Introduction 

 
1.1. The work programme of the People Scrutiny Commission for 2019-20 included an 

Evidence Day to conduct in-depth scrutiny into the Local Authority’s performance of the 
Education Health & Care Plans (EHCPs). 
 

1.2. This session was planned to compliment the agreed focus on Special Educational Needs 
and Disability (SEND) in 2019-20, as a standing item on each People Scrutiny 
Commission meeting. 

 
2. What is an Evidence Day? 

 
2.1. An Evidence Day, also known as an Inquiry Day, utilises the Council’s scrutiny function to 

critically examine policies, performance and how things are done within the Council and 
related partnerships.   
 

2.2. Simply put it is a day where evidence is gathered by listening to a wide range of people’s 
views, experiences and expertise.   Elected Members look at the evidence, identifying 
key issues, so as to contribute ways to improve things, enabling better outcomes for 
Bristol.  

 
3. Why was a SEND Evidence Day held? 

 
3.1. The reason for the focus on SEND was the wide-ranging concern about performance of 

Bristol’s SEND provision.  The Evidence Day was planned to focus on the EHCP process 
which, it was clear, was unacceptable - letting down Bristol’s young people, and causing 
distress to parents and carers across the city. 
 

3.2. A commitment was made to utilise the scrutiny function to listen, learn and help enable 
an improved and effective statutory assessment process for an Education, Health and 
Care Plan, so as to improve outcomes for Bristol’s children and their parents and carers.  

 
4. Who took part in the Evidence Day? 

 
4.1. The SEND Evidence Day was held at City Hall on the 3rd February 2020, led by a cross-

party panel, including Cllr Claire Hiscott, Chair of the People Scrutiny Commission, Cllr 
Celia Phipps, Vice-Chair of the People Scrutiny Commission,  Cllr Eleanor Combley, Lead 
for the Green Group, and Cllr Tim Kent, Lead for the Liberal Democrat Group.  Invited 
delegates who took part in the session included Bristol’s elected Members, Council 
Officers, and representatives from the NHS, schools and parents groups.   

 

 

Page 53



  Appendix 1: SEND Evidence Day report  

2 
 

 

4.2. The three evidence sessions, following the Extraordinary Meeting of the People Scrutiny 
Commission, provided good opportunities for constructive scrutiny.  The Chair felt it was 
important to attempt to articulate the emotional, heartfelt and profound contributions 
from parents and carers, especially in the public Extraordinary scrutiny meeting, which 
touched everyone and strengthened resolve to contribute to improvements.  As one 
parent commented, “apologies and words are not enough; it is deeds that count”. The 
People Scrutiny Commission intends that the Evidence Day and ongoing scrutiny 
contributes to positive actions rather than words only.   
 

4.3. The People Scrutiny Commission would like to thank all those who attended the 
Evidence Day, providing for dynamic and instructive scrutiny.   
 

4.4. The Commission would especially like to thank the 10 expert witnesses, including 
parents and carers, national policy specialists, and education practitioners who took 
part in the three evidence sessions, sharing their knowledge and experience, for which 
the Commission is extremely grateful.  A full list of the witnesses is at pp. 12-13 of 
Appendix 2 (Information pack). 

 
5. What was included in the Evidence Day? 

 
5.1. The SEND Evidence Day centred around three evidence sessions:  

 
(i) Parents and young people;  
(ii) National policy and specialist; and  
(iii) Education practitioners.   

 
Each session benefitted from a wealth of knowledge, experience and expertise from 
specialists in their areas, including from Parent Carers Forum; Bristol Independent SEND 
Community; Supportive Parents; Barnardo’s; Local Government Association; SOS!SEN; 
Bristol Dyslexia Centre; Bristol City Academy; KnowleDGE; and Bannerman Road 
Community Academy. 

 
5.2. The Commission would have preferred a wider representation of expert witnesses and 

invited guests, but they were required to work within constraints including numbers 
that could be accommodated and the time available.  This was a closed session, 
although a public meeting was held beforehand (which was live streamed on the  
internet) and all statements and questions about EHCPs submitted at that meeting have 
been taken into account for the Evidence Day findings. 
 

5.3. The focus at the Evidence Day was on local authority functions, with the Director of 
Education and Skills present to give an opening account of the local context - refer to 
pp. 10-11of Appendix 2 Information pack).  Because of this focus, it was acknowledged 
that health colleagues were not represented, and so the findings could not fully 
influence the Health aspect of the EHCP process.  Whilst it is not believed this has 
detracted from the scrutiny process health colleagues would be requested to be a part 
of future scrutiny sessions. 

 

Page 54



  Appendix 1: SEND Evidence Day report  

3 
 

 
 

5.4. The Evidence Day was originally planned to be held on the 2nd December 2019; and due 
to the Ofsted/CQC local area inspection and the subsequent delayed report as a result 
of the General Election, a decision was made to postpone to the 3rd February 2020.   
 

6. Findings  
 

6.1. A number of issues and remedies have been identified. This report focuses on what the 
Commission considers are the key issues and achievable remedies.  These are not an 
exhaustive list; and represents as best as possible the views in the room during the 
three evidence sessions as well as submitted statements.   

 
6.2. Key issues 
 
(i) Culture and trust  

 

 There is a clear lack of trust which the Council and partners need to address. 
 

 Parents and carers feel the current LA culture is not child or family-focussed, 
leading to frustration and alienation of families from the process. 
 

 There is a need for a wider representation of communities across Bristol when co-
producing the service; it is felt there are barriers for some people within 
communities across Bristol to engage with and access SEND provision, which needs 
to be addressed. 

 
(ii) Funding and capacity 
 

 There is concern that demand is increased due to misunderstanding or mistrust or 
lack of transparency regarding how support can be provided without applying for 
an EHCP.  
 

 Staff levels are lower than the demand requires, and there is a need for a local 
response to national policy and funding decisions. 

 
(iii) Quality 
 

 The assessment process is, not only too slow, but too complex and is of poor 
quality; some reports are unclear and too long. 
 

 There is no agreement or understanding of what ‘good’ looks like; and 
inconsistency of how things are done. 
 

 Lack of ownership from teams and individuals are barriers to achieving quality plans 
and good outcomes.  
 
 

Page 55



  Appendix 1: SEND Evidence Day report  

4 
 

 

 The expectation is for a higher bar than the minimum legal requirement, yet there 
are misunderstandings about what the statutory requirements are, creating further 
barriers to quality assurance.  

 
(iv) Meaningful partnership working  
 

 Too often parents and carers need to knock on doors and explain their situation to 
more than one person, creating frustration, mis-trust, and poor outcomes for the 
child.  This may be due to a lack of constructive information sharing between 
schools, health services and the Council, and a lack of ownership of casework 
before, after and throughout an EHCP process. 

6.3. Remedies 
 
(i) Culture and trust   
 

 Improved communication by the Council with children, parents and carers and 
partners: A communication and engagement framework that reflects on, and 
addresses attitudes, values, how we communicate, and how engagement and 
access is enabled (and implementing this in practice) will help achieve a cultural 
change and enable trust.  

  

 Ensure next steps include and are driven by parents and carers; and that no one is 
left feeling they do not have the opportunity to access information and services.   

 

 We need to reach out to BAME families, those with English as a second language,  
and other ‘hard to reach’ vulnerable families. The Council should be proactive in 
contacting those families who feel they cannot engage or access services, and 
should widen the representation of voices across diverse communities in Bristol in 
the co-production and co-reviewing of services.  

 

 There should be as much clarity and transparency about the process and criteria for 
decision making as possible.   

 

 Schools should be clear and transparent on how all SEN funding is spent.    
 

 School Governor training would help to clarify responsibilities and provide 
consistency and enable transparency. 
 

 The importance and profile of SEND provision and its impact on Bristol’s 
communities should be communicated across the Council’s and partners’ 
workforce.  

 

 The Local Offer should be clearer and more accessible; ensuring it contains up-to-
date helpful and relevant information, informed by what parents and carers say 
they need to know.  The new website should be reviewed regularly; and it should 
have connectivity to related sites. 

Page 56



  Appendix 1: SEND Evidence Day report  

5 
 

 
(ii) Funding and capacity  
 

 Elected Members commit to continue to lobby for adequate funding of services, 
both directly and by working with the Local Government Association. 

 

 The local funding mechanisms should be reviewed and simplified to ensure 
provision on the EHCP can be met. This will require the Education and Finance 
departments working closely together, in collaboration with the Bristol Schools 
Forum. 

 

 It is important and useful to ensure Bristol fully contributes to the cross party peer 
review. 

 
(iii) Quality 
 

 A review of standards and what ‘good’ looks like, and roll out of agreed 
performance indicators with a clear performance management framework will help 
with consistency and quality assurance.  

 

 There should be a review/gap analysis of training for staff involved in SEND 
provision, as well as directly involved in the EHCP related processes (including, for 
example, report writing) provided across the Council, schools and health.   A 
reviewed learning and development plan and roll out will help improve quality, 
including consistency of approach, and improvement of communications. 

 

 School Governor training would help clarify responsibilities and provide consistency 
and enable transparency. 

 

 The process should be simplified, utilising standard templates where appropriate. 
 

 There should be clear ‘ownership’ with families provided with a team or ‘go to’ 
person for information about the process. A clear point of contact should also be 
available before and after the 20 week process. 

 

 Reports should be concise and written in plain-English, avoiding ‘copy and pasting’ 
of long technical reports with jargon; and should be clear regarding identified need, 
provision, and measurable outcomes.   

 

 Practice should be ‘child, parents, carer, and family-centred’ – ensuring they are 
enabled to have control over the process, and objectives and outcomes align with 
their needs. 
 

(iv) Meaningful partnership working  
 

 A review of partnerships and a published map detailing the relationships between 
education, health and care partners will provide clarity for parents and carers and 
also practitioners. 

Page 57



  Appendix 1: SEND Evidence Day report  

6 
 

 

 The Council can help enable stronger relationships with and between schools. 
 

 Schools should be encouraged and enabled to share specialisms and resources with 
each other. 

 

 Partnerships should ensure there is a clear understanding of accountability and 
ownership of tasks, communications methods, and information sharing protocol to 
ensure all information is up-to–date and parents and carers do not need to chase 
unresolved issues. 

7. Recommendations and next steps 
 

7.1. The People Scrutiny Commission recommend that; 
 
(i) This report should be considered by the executive and senior officers, and all 

findings are taken into account when co-producing the Written Statement of 
Action and when developing the EHCP process with parents and carers. 
 

(ii) The development of the EHCP process and Written Statement of Action and next 
steps be considered by scrutiny as a standing item on the 2020-21 work 
programme. 

 
(iii) This report should be considered at the appropriate partnerships groups and 

boards (including but not restricted to those listed a – d  below), where the 
findings should be considered: 
a. Health and wellbeing Board  
b. Keeping People Safe Partnership – keeping Children Safe Group  
c. Children’s and families Programme Board  
d. Learning City Partnership Board  

 
With reference to the key issues and remedies listed in paragraph 6, the People Scrutiny 
Commission recommends that; 
 
(iv) A clear communication and engagement plan is produced that looks to address 

the issues relating to culture and trust. 
 
 

(v) The EHCP process should be simplified and should utilise templates based on co-
design with parents and carers and identifying best practice.  

 

(vi) A reviewed training programme for all local authority staff involved in the EHCP 
process should include: 
 

 Communications and partnership working 

 The legal requirements around EHCPs 

 Early identification of need and appropriate interventions  
 

Page 58



  Appendix 1: SEND Evidence Day report  

7 
 

In addition the Commission feel that similar training should be offered to 
SENCOs working in schools in Bristol. 
 

(vii) There should be close relationships and joint work with other local authorities, 
the independent sector, and universities so as to identify good practice to (i) 
better inform co-production of the EHCP process and (ii) for early intervention 
work, before an application is required. 
 

(viii) There should be regular reports to scrutiny of progress that has been made in 
this area from the Director of Education.   

 

(ix) Regular internal reviews of progress and training should be carried out within 
the department and improvements to partnership working should be monitored. 

 

It will be for the People Scrutiny Commission to regularly review progress made by the local 

authority so that Parents, Carers and families can be confident that their needs are being met 

and improvements are being made. The public-facing role of the scrutiny commission must 

ensure that Bristol citizens are kept up to date with progress and will endeavour to ensure the 

voices of SEND families are heard throughout the improvement roll out. 

 

Councillor Claire Hiscott, Chair of the People Scrutiny Commission; Conservative Group 

Councillor Celia Phipps, Vice Chair of the People Scrutiny Commission; Labour Group 

Councillor Eleanor Combley, Lead for Green Group 

Councillor Tim Kent, Lead for Liberal Democrat Group 

Councillor Jude English, Green Group 

Councillor Carole Johnson,  Labour Group 

Councillor Gill Kirk,  Labour Group 

Councillor Brenda Massey, Labour Group 

Councillor Ruth Pickersgill, Labour Group 

Councillor Tim Rippington, Labour Group 

Councillor Steve Smith, Conservative Group 

Page 59



People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 1 of 24 

 
 

Safeguarding children and young people within the context of  
Covid-19 response and recovery planning 

 
Report of the People Scrutiny Commission 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Foreword 

In July 2020, Bristol City Council’s scrutiny commissions were given the opportunity 
to convene cross-party scrutiny working groups to focus on the effect of Covid-19 
on Council services, communities and individuals across Bristol.  The People 
Scrutiny Commission Working Group agreed to focus on ‘Safeguarding vulnerable 
children within the context of Covid-19 response and recovery planning’, 
concentrating on what practices worked well, and where improvements could be 
made. 
 
The aim was to capture reflections and learning while the issues were still fresh in 
people’s memories.  However, ensuring the correct timing of this has meant finding 
the right balance between capturing initial reflections and learning as opposed to 
waiting until the whole impact of lockdown became apparent. It was felt that 
capturing thoughts and ideas early was imperative and useful for ongoing policy 
development to support the hard work and dedication of the Council’s Children’s 
Services and wider City partners.  At the time of writing this foreword, the issue 
around timing has been brought into sharp relief as we, once again, face a period 
of lockdown restrictions; it is of course too early to implement all learning for this 
coming difficult phase, but it is hoped the content could inform and assist the 
Council and its partners. 
 
The Working Group has taken note of and reported solely on the evidence 
gathered during the scrutiny sessions or from written submissions by invited 
partners. It is expected that wider and interconnected issues and policies, which 
were not within the remit of the Working Group and so not directly addressed, 
should also be considered and taken into account alongside this report. 
 
The Working Group would like to formally recognise the high level of commitment, 
flexibility and insight shown by the Council’s leadership team and the whole 
workforce during the Lockdown phase of the pandemic. Their work, as well as that 
of all City partners - youth organisations, schools, Bristol’s community groups and 
volunteers, Police and community safety partners - has been exemplary during one 
of the most challenging times in our recent history. It was also inspiring to hear 
from the children and young people themselves, who have needed to adapt and 
support each other.  We would like to extend our sincere thanks to all those who 
have worked so tirelessly to keep Bristol’s children and young people safe during 
the COVID-19 pandemic. 

      

Councillor Claire Hiscott, Chair of the People Scrutiny Commission 

 
 

Page 60

Agenda Item 12



People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 2 of 24 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contents 
 

 

 

Executive summary       p. 3 

 

Introduction        p. 5 

 

Participants and submissions      p. 6 

 

Findings        p. 7 

Understanding the immediate risks and harms         

associated with the lockdown period     p. 8  

Understanding the risks and harms as we plan to                

move away from lockdown restrictions    p.11 

Communication and messaging     p.14  

Service provision and joint working       p.15 

Equality and inclusion       p.16 

 

Summing up        p.17 

 

Recommendations       p.22 

 

Members of the People Scrutiny Working Group   

 p.21 

 

 

Page 61



People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 3 of 24 

Executive summary  Return to contents 
 
The People Scrutiny Working Group, a cross-Party group of elected Members, Chaired by 
Councillor Claire Hiscott, was convened in July 2020 to focus on what effect Covid-19 has had 
on safeguarding children and young people in Bristol, what the city-wide response has been, 
and what learning there is to help inform and build resilience for the ongoing challenges and 
for risks of future pandemics.  In August 2020 evidence was heard from 22 participants and the 
Working Group also considered 5 further submissions. 

 
The issues, reflections and responses that came out of the evidence sessions can be organised 
across 6 key areas:   (i) Identifying who needed support and assessing risk, (ii) School 
attendance during lockdown, (iii) Family tensions and stress, (iv) Community support, detached 
youth work and contextual safeguarding, (v) Children’s and young people’s mental health,        
(vi) Back to school; and underpinned by issues of Communication & Messaging, Service 
Provision & Joint working, and Equality & inclusion.           

 
 Significant findings were: 
 

 Members felt it essential, firstly, to commend the exceptional work of all youth and child 
services practitioners in the Council and across partner organisations during the period of 
lockdown and after.   
 

 Members heard that misunderstandings about what practitioners from the Council and youth 
organisations could and couldn’t do within lockdown restrictions created some gaps in 
services, and so agreed there should be clear and standardised guidance that would be easily 
available for all practitioners and organisations.  Members also felt that there should be an 
increased profile and positive messaging about youth services as a trusted point of contact and 
engagement for young people and their families, and that the Council ought to further utilise 
the rich resource and knowledge across the sector for training and sharing good practice, 
including taking up the direct offer from the Association of Child Protection Professionals of 
support. 
 

 Although it was found that when lockdown restrictions came into force the Council acted 
quickly and appropriately, Members heard that it was at times unclear how to access support 
for those young people who would not have previously considered themselves vulnerable, but 
who came to be so due to the extra stresses and pressures associated with Covid-19 and 
lockdown restrictions. Members recognised suitable provision of guidance, including in 
schools, although found there was a need for clearer messaging and also that child-friendly 
advice and guidance should be made available. 

 

 Members were told that young people are experiencing what’s described as ‘Covid anxiety’ 
with increases in mental health issues; and that a renewed focus on mental health and 
wellbeing has placed it fully within the remit of safeguarding concerns.  Members felt that this 
refocussed approach should be encouraged and developed within the Council, youth 
organisations and across school settings.  Members commended the young people who 
contributed to Barnardo’s report, 'Mental Health and Covid-19: In Our Own Words’, and 

Page 62

https://www.barnardos.org.uk/mental-health-covid19-in-our-own-words-report


People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 4 of 24 

thought these documented experiences should be referred to, learnt from, and similar projects 
encouraged and developed. 

 School attendance figures were found to be low amongst the eligible cohort during lockdown.   
Members thought clearer messaging was required as schools reopened, providing reassurance 
that the option of school attendance was a good one, and ensuring messages from schools and 
partners were aligned to avoid confusion.  Members heard that the Designated Safeguarding 
Leads Network was well utilised and was a positive and invaluable resource, and so agreed the 
Network should be supported and be front and centre in ongoing recovery planning.  

 

 Members heard that whilst online service provision and connectivity rose out of necessity due 
to reduced face to face contact, many families were unable to access the internet.  It was 
noted that most schools knew students who were unable to access digital platforms and 
worked hard to provide hard copies of resources to them. However, despite distribution of 
devices with connectivity by the Council and youth organisations, it was recognised that there 
were still gaps across the city where families were unable to connect virtually.  Members 
thought greater focus should be placed on tackling the ‘digital divide’, and the Council and all 
its partners should aim to ensure every household had equitable access to the internet.  

 

 Assumptions and perceptions about young people involved in street conflict, serious violence 
and/or drug related offending were flagged as potential barriers to support and safeguarding, 
including societal perceptions of some young Black people as offenders rather than victims of 
criminal exploitation.  Therefore, Members thought that the culturally competent responses 
within the Council’s child-centred services were welcome and should be built upon by way of 
appropriate training and utilising more local organisations that already had close relationships 
in Black Asian Minority Ethnic (BAME) communities to help co-produce services.   

 

 Members heard about the importance and value of detached youth work and a contextual 
safeguarding approach which would provide for an understanding of extra-familial factors; and 
felt the Council, whilst being at the forefront of collaborative working arrangements to utilise 
these methods, should investigate ways to increase the use of detached youth work and a 
contextual safeguarding approach across the city.  

 

 It was noted that the usual 9-5 office hours could prevent or delay access and support where it 
was needed, and so Members agreed that the Council should investigate how its service 
delivery could be more balanced with the work in voluntary and community organisations, 
including infrastructure outside those usual office hours. 

 

 Members found that the City had strong existing networks and partnerships. However Covid-
19 had shown that they need to be built on and arrangements should be put in place enabling 
them to be utilised even more, which would create firmer resilience for future pandemics.  

 

 It was recognised that Covid-19 shone a light on structural inequalities, including that 
economically deprived households required extra support including food parcels, which placed 
children under further stress and risk of harm.  Members commended the role of mutual aid 
groups who had stepped up during the crisis, and Social Prescribing services were highlighted 
as valuable for supporting and signposting  young people and families; and that there should 
be more investment and development of Social Prescribing in communities.   

Page 63



People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 5 of 24 

Introduction    Return to contents 
 

As in every workplace and household, the Council saw big changes as a result of lockdown in 
March 2020,  including how day to day work was carried out, how partnerships across the city 
were maintained (and in most cases developed), and how elected Councillors (also known as 
Members) carried out their duties. Rules were amended to enable ‘virtual council meetings’ 
with public participation; and processes, plans and priorities were refocused to ensure safety 
and that support was available where it was needed.    
 
Finally, relevant questions and discussions were had to enable learning so as to build 
confidence and resilience for the future.  This included ensuring that, in line with the Centre for 
Public Scrutiny guidance1, the Council’s scrutiny function was maintained and utilised to act as 
a critical friend to the administration in terms of supporting the Covid-19 response and 
recovery planning.  With that in mind, the Chairs of the Council’s scrutiny commissions 
convened Working Groups, overseen by the Overview & Scrutiny Management Board, with the 
remit to focus on the effect of Covid-19 on Council services, communities and individuals 
across Bristol.  
 
Safeguarding children within the context of Covid-19 response and recovery planning was 
prioritised by the People Scrutiny Commission.  This focus was based on Scrutiny Members’ 
views that, at this time of crisis, Bristol’s children and young people’s safety and wellbeing are 
of top concern and so the scrutiny function was best placed to help reflect and learn from the 
response, and inform recovery planning and future policy with regard to keeping children and 
young people safe. 
 

The purpose of the Working Group   
 

Reflection and Learning 

The Working Group would like these findings and recommendations to support the Council and 
city partners reflect and learn from the experience of lockdown so as to: 
 
1. Build resilience should Covid-19 remain for the foreseeable future or increase again,  and 

also for the risk of future pandemics and other city emergencies; 
 
2. Inform ongoing recovery planning to support the protection of vulnerable children as we 

experience the rolling back of some lockdown restrictions; 
 
3. Inform ongoing policy development across the city, gaining improvements for: 
o identification of risk and vulnerable children and families; 
o support and preventative measures available for vulnerable children and families; 
o equitable access to prevention and support services for all vulnerable children and 

families from different backgrounds, with all protected characteristics, and for those with 
economic disadvantages.  

 
 

                                                           
1
 The name has now changed to Centre for Governance and Scrutiny 

Page 64

https://cfgs.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020-06-19-covid-guide-2-scrutiny-2nd-edn.pdf
https://cfgs.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020-06-19-covid-guide-2-scrutiny-2nd-edn.pdf
https://cfgs.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/CfPS-Good-Scrutiny-Guide-v5-WEB-SINGLE-PAGES.pdf
https://www.cfgs.org.uk/


People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 6 of 24 

How the Working Group investigated and collected evidence for this report 
 

The 3 aims above were framed around the following key questions which were referred to 
when collecting and reviewing evidence;  
 
1. What were the most successful methods, and 

what has been found to be unsuccessful, in 
identifying risk and safeguarding vulnerable 
children during lockdown? 

 
2. What are the lessons learnt and what new 

methods can be implemented to identify, 
support and protect vulnerable children, 
young people and families coming out of lockdown period? 

 
Participants and submissions        Return to contents  
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
“The questions you ask will probably be an 
exam question for public servants in years to 
come” 
 
Jacqui Jenson, Executive Director, People, 
Bristol City Council 

 

Cllr Helen Holland  Cabinet Member, Adult Social Care; and Co-Chair of the Health & Wellbeing Board 

 

Session 1: Council & City Partners 

Jacqui Jenson  Executive Director, 
People, Bristol City Council  
 
Alison Hurley  Director, Education 
and Skills, Bristol City Council   
 
Ann James  Director, Children, 
Families and Safer Communities, 
Bristol City Council     
 

Ivan Powell  Independent Chair, 
Keeping Bristol Safe Partnership 
 
Jim Bowyer  Head,  Bristol 
Hospital Education Services 
 
Henry Chan  Safeguarding in 
Education Team Manager;  Chair, 
Education Reference Group 
 
Victoria Caple, Lighthouse 
Safeguarding Unit Partnership 
Manager, Avon & Somerset Police 
 
Gerry Bates  Head of Children's 
Services, Sirona Care & Health 

 

Session 2: National picture 

Dr. Carlene Firmin  Social 

Researcher, University of 

Bedfordshire 

Wendy Thorogood  Chair, 

Association of Child Protection 

Professionals 

Fiona Carnie, Educationalist 

 

Session 3: Children & young people 

Rob Farrow, Head of Service (Young 

People) Learning Partnership West 

Kate Gough, Head of Bristol Youth 

Services, Creative Youth Network 

Jack Beech Chief Operating Officer, 

Creative Youth Network 

Anthony Hill  Service Manager, 

Helping Young People Engage (HYPE), 

Barnardo’s 

Ella Remes  Service Manager, 

Barnardo’s Against Sexual 

Exploitation (BASE), Barnardo’s 

Maya Mate-Kole Golden Key/ The 

Call In;  Commissioner, Commission 

on Race Equality 

Tom Owen  Chief Executive Officer, 

The Green House 

Molly Flitcroft  Member of UK Youth 

Parliament; Bristol Youth Council 

 

Evidence not in person 

DCI Larisa Hunt Operation Topaz,  

Avon & Somerset Police 

Androulla Nicolaou Prevention 

Officer and Coordinator, Topaz, 

Avon and Somerset Police 

Empire Fighting Chance 

Royal College of Paediatrics and 

Child Health 

Office of the Children’s 

Commissioner 

 Cllr Asher Craig  Deputy Mayor,                    
Communities, Equalities & Public Health    

 

 

 

Cllr Helen Godwin  Cabinet Member,    Women, Families 
and Homes (Lead Member for Children’s Services) 

 

Members of the People Scrutiny Working Group heard from 22 participants in person, and 

received a further 5 written submissions; 

Page 65



People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 7 of 24 

Findings       Return to contents 

            
The diagram below is a visual representation of the Working Group’s findings.  Members organised the issues, reflections and responses that 

arose from the evidence sessions into 6 key areas:   (i) Identifying  who needed support and assessing risk; (ii) School attendance during 

lockdown; (iii) Family tensions and stress; (iv) Community support, detached youth work and contextual safeguarding; (v) Children’s and young 

people’s mental health; (vi) Back to school.  The first 3 areas were with regard to ‘Understanding the immediate risks and harms associated with 

a lockdown’ and the second group of 3 areas were informed by ‘Understanding the risks and harms as we plan to move away from lockdown 

restrictions’ (with the understanding guidance and rules may change quickly).   

Members appreciated the relationships and interconnectivity between them all, demanding a holistic approach to analysis.  Recommendations 
are framed and informed by 3 overarching themes: (i) Communication & messaging; (ii) Service provision & joint working; (iii) Equality & 
inclusion. 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Equality & inclusion           

inequalities, perceptions, 

and bias 

                                                                                                                                                                      

 

Communication & messaging 
clarity of guidance, messaging,                          

and perceptions 

Service provision & joint working 
access to services, information 
sharing, commissioning, and 

partnerships 
 

Understanding the immediate risks and harms                   
associated with a lockdown  

Understanding the risks and harms as we plan to                       
move away from lockdown restrictions 

Identifying who 
needed support and 

assessing risk 
 

School 

attendance     

during lockdown 

Family tensions and 
stress  

 

Community support, 
detached youth work 

and contextual 
safeguarding 

Children’s and 

young people’s 

mental health 

 

   Back to school 

 

Recommendations  

ISSUES, REFLECTIONS & RESPONSES 

P
age 66



People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 8 of 24 

Understanding the immediate risks and harms associated with the lockdown period         Return to contents 
 

 ISSUES REFLECTIONS & RESPONSES 

Identifying who needed support 
and assessing risk 

 

 Risks of intra-familial harm 
exacerbated by lockdown. 
 

 Some children and young 
people affected may not have 
been known to social services. 

 

 Less availability of safe spaces 
led to difficulties in contacting 
young people. 

 

 Groups of children and young 
people disproportionately 
affected by lockdown, including 
low income and Black, Asian, 
Minority Ethnic communities. 

 

 Risks of transmission of Covid-
19 to unwell and vulnerable 
children. 

 

 Lack of digital access for some 
children and young people.   

 

 Risk assessments were undertaken and plans put in place for every vulnerable child known to the 
Council at the earliest stage. 
 

 Participants raised concerns in relation to `hidden harm’; as children and young people were not able to 
disclose to trusted professionals, there were less opportunities to safeguard and reduce risk. 
 

 The Council pointed to good data analytics with the ability to 
identify risks of harm so as to reach out to families. There is 
ongoing developmental work with government.   
 

 Face to face contacts were prioritised by the Council based on 
a risk analysis of families and Council workforce.  

 

 There was a focus on harm in the home - outside spaces may 
have been perceived as less problematic, and so it is unclear 
how much was missed in extra-familial contexts. 

 

 The Council had a focus on providing cultural competent services, and the positive connections with 
community organisations could be built upon in future coproduction opportunities.  
 

 System-wide response was required with the purpose to keep the most unwell and vulnerable children 
out of hospital - the Lifetime team moved to 7 days a week. 
 

 Laptops with connectivity have been distributed by the Council, Hope Virtual School and youth network 
groups to families without online access; although there are still gaps across the city where families are 
unable to connect virtually. 

 
“Every child had a Covid-related risk 
assessment with a contingency plan 
should their main carer not be able to 
continue to care for them”. 
 
Ann James, Director of Children, 
Families and Safer Communities, 
Bristol City Council 

 

P
age 67

https://www.sirona-cic.org.uk/nhsservices/services/lifetime/
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/schools-learning-early-years/resources-professionals/guide-to-the-hope-virtual-school


People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 9 of 24 

 ISSUES REFLECTIONS & RESPONSES 

School attendance during 
lockdown for eligible cohort of 
children  
 

 Centralised school attendance 
reporting meant there was a 
week’s time-lag with the data 
with risks of missing non-
attendance of vulnerable 
children. 
 
 
 

 Children and young people not 
having contact with 
professionals, including pastoral 
care at school, meant subtleties 
could not be spotted in the 
same way.  

 
 
 

 There was low take-up of school 
places for vulnerable children 
during the period of lockdown, 
especially in low income areas. 

 
 

 The Council created a local reporting system; the Education Reference Group  focussed on attendance; 
there were integrated working arrangements including Hope Virtual School, Social Workers and 
education and skills colleagues – all working together to wrap around those families eligible for school 
during this period.  

 

 The Designated Safeguarding Leads Network was the main 
way of checking and monitoring. The importance of the post 
was flagged.  

 

 It was noted that there was, in general, historically less contact 
with households in mainstream practice, meaning a larger 
adjustment was needed to ensure continued education during 
lockdown period. 

 

 Some children and young people who found mainstream settings 
challenging reported feeling safer online.  

 

 The sector developed local partnerships with other settings when 
capacity and continuity were identified as risks and concerns.  

 

 Many schools took on children temporarily during the lockdown 
period. 

 

 Food packages and free school meals were provided to identified 
families who needed them. 

 

 Schools worked together to provide a ‘Think Family’ response if children from the same family attended 
different settings. 

 

 
“The environment we were in at that 
time was very much about the fear of 
Covid and everyone was in lockdown 
and being asked to remain in their 
homes”. 
 
Alison Hurley, Director of Education & 
Skills, Bristol City Council 
 

 
“For some young people in-person 
school bullying is the main concern 
as well as feeling unsafe on the 
school journey, so we need to think 
how to support those children back 
into education”.  
 
Dr. Carlene Firmin, Social 
Researcher 
 

P
age 68

https://www.bristollearningcity.com/education/safeguarding-in-education/
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/policies-plans-strategies/the-troubled-families-scheme


People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 10 of 24 

 ISSUES REFLECTIONS & RESPONSES 

Family tensions and stress  
 

 Tensions in households and 
other factors have led to 
teenagers leaving, or being 
asked to leave, the family 
home. 
 

 

 Scarcity of foster placements 
exacerbated by Covid across the 
wider region with some foster 
placements breaking down (not 
specific to Bristol’s experience). 

 
 
 

 

 The Council invoked the amendments in the 
Children’s Act needed to speed up assessment 
and approval of foster carers to meet the 
needs of children. 

 
 

 Increased anxiety and tensions were reported 
in many families already under pressure.    

 
 

 Use of placement stability plans with family 
work was identified as important, including providing extra emotional and practical support to families. 
 
 

 There was a positive response in Bristol, with many 
additional carers stepping forward, which increased the carer 
base by 20.  

 
 
 

 
“Talking to young people how to keep calm, how to 
keep well, how to remove themselves from situations and 
resolve conflict before it escalates has been really 
important.  Family work has been important - reaching 
out, providing extra emotional and practical support to 
family members in order to keep calmness and safety at 
home wherever possible”.  
 
Ella Remes, Service Manager, BASE Barnardo’s  

 

 
"There has been increased anxiety and 
tensions in many families already under 
pressure”. 
 
Tom Owen, CEO, The Green House 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 69



People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 11 of 24 

Understanding the risks and harms as we plan to move away from lockdown restrictions                        Return to contents 
 

 ISSUES REFLECTIONS & RESPONSES 

Community support, detached 
youth work and contextual 
safeguarding 

 

 Coming out of lockdown saw an 
increase in risks of criminal 
exploitation, including 
teenagers’ involvement in 
organised crime, street conflict 
and serious violence. 
 
 

 More children in Bristol are 
victims of ‘County Lines’ which 
involve organised crime 
networks trafficking children to 
deal drugs. 
 
 

 Economic disadvantage has 
come more into focus during 
this period, with the risk of it 
becoming worse within the 
context of an expected 
economic downturn. 

 

 

 Increased youth worker and community presence was noted as beneficial for enabling young people to 
feel safe. 
 

 Training in adolescence development was raised as important for focus on child welfare in communities. 
 

 There was a need to understand extra-familial factors; and a contextual safeguarding approach. 
 

 Detached youth work could reach the most vulnerable young people – it was described as the most 
successful way of understanding how young people are coping.  

 

 Relationships could be built through 
detached work, enabling referrals to 
services where necessary.  

 

 Agreement across participants that street 
detached work was important to build 
relationships, gain intelligence and identify groups and locations of harm. 
 

 Collaborative working arrangements between Police, Council and Youth networks has enabled detached 
work to make positive impacts - Safer Options, noted as a positive culturally competent partnership,  is 
the Council’s programme that supports young people in partnership with youth organisations, the Youth 
Offending Team, Police and other community safety partners.   

 
 There were examples of positive stories from youth groups of young people helping each other and 

neighbours; and helping out at foodbanks. 
 

 
“Our work is all about relationships; we need to be able to 
see young people and be able to act at the right time”. 
 
Ann James, Director of Children, Families and Safer 
Communities, Bristol City Council 

 

P
age 70

https://contextualsafeguarding.org.uk/


People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 12 of 24 

 ISSUES REFLECTIONS & RESPONSES 

Children’s and young people’s 
mental health 
 

 There were reports of a lot of 
‘Covid anxiety’ among young 
people, e.g. deep concern 
about the ability to socially 
distance,  what to do about 
needing to travel by bus, and 
fear of mixing at school – 
especially for those from 
families with health issues. 

 
 
 

 With the increase of online 
platforms enabling visual 
contact, body image and 
presentation was affecting some 
young people’s mental health. 
 
 
 

 The children who were hard to 
reach during lockdown became 
isolated and may present with 
increasing mental health issues. 

 
 

 

 Linking children’s services, mental health services and schools 
more closely to deliver effective and confidential mental health 
support to young people was raised as important, and that young 
people should be involved in co-designing those services. 

 

 Participants reported a renewed focus on mental health and 
wellbeing during lockdown which is being maintained during the 
recovery period; a focus that has placed mental health fully within the remit of safeguarding concerns. 
 

 Young people set up a blog to support other young people. Young people co-authored a report about 
their experiences, ‘Mental Health and Covid-19: In Our Own Words’.  
 

 There have been Council-led initiatives to provide a voice to children and young people including 
#wearebristolkids and the developing ‘Belonging’ strategy by the Youth Council.  

 

 Online skills of youth workers have been raised; with a focus on 
art/backgrounds rather than faces within online engagement, 
which has helped to overcome some anxieties about being online. 

 

 There were reports of children and young people with anxiety and 
mental health issues feeling supported online as it was less 
daunting and more accessible for them.   
 

 The Working Group was told to expect an increase in demand for 
mental health services when schools return. 

 
“Young people are reporting an 
increase in mental health 
concerns”. 
  
Anthony Hill, HYPE Barnardo’s 
 

 
“Schools should treat mental health 
as a safeguarding responsibility. 
This corresponds to the wider work 
around trauma informed 
approaches to behaviour”. 
  
Henry Chan, Safeguarding in 
Education Team Manager, Bristol 
City Council 
 
 

P
age 71

https://www.barnardos.org.uk/mental-health-covid19-in-our-own-words-report
https://www.wearebristol.co.uk/kids/


People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 13 of 24 

 ISSUES REFLECTIONS & RESPONSES 

Back to school 
 

 Risk of low attendance. 
 

 Concerns from young people 
about confidentiality if they 
disclose any concerns and 
issues.  

 

 Schools’ difficulties 
accommodating pupils due to 
social distancing rules and 
concerns and anxiety from 
parents and children. 
 
 

 Children and young people 
finding it difficult to disclose 
issues and concerns to teachers 
and other professionals. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 It was reported that some young people don’t feel safe going to school. 
 
 

 The Working Group was told some parents felt frightened about sending children back to school; 
refugees and asylum seekers being particularly concerned. This required proactive work to engage 
marginalised groups. 

 
 

 A point was made that schools’ issues, including concerns 
about accommodating pupils safely could be partially 
addressed by outdoor learning where possible.   
 

 

 Return to school was seen as an opportunity to identify 
those who need support, such as if there is truancy. 

 
 

 It was noted that Hospital Education has smaller classes and a higher student to staff ratio, and extra 
support being available with stronger links with families than 
main stream.   

 

 Live virtual lessons went ahead in some settings. 
 
 

 There needed to be support for young people to support 
their peers – requiring clear messaging: “what to do if a 
friend tells you something in confidence.”  

 

 
“Outdoor learning can be restorative, 
and can address mental health needs. In 
Orkney GPs prescribe outdoor activity to 
boost mental health.    Using outdoor 
spaces can also help meet distancing 
requirements. Weather doesn’t need to 
be a barrier”. 

 
Fiona Carnie, Educationalist 
 

 
“Clear messaging to peers is important – 
one of the best ways to identify support 
and safeguarding need”.  
 
Dr. Carlene Firmin, Social Researcher 
 

P
age 72



People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 14 of 24 

Communication and messaging                        Return to contents    
 

 ISSUES  REFLECTIONS & RESPONSES 

Clarity of guidance; types of 
messaging; and perceptions 
 

 Generally, guidance highlighted 
vulnerabilities for those who 
had social workers, so people 
prioritised those - others may 
have been left behind. 
 

 Families were worried about 
being in breach of lockdown if 
they reported missing children.  
 

 Information and guidance for 
young people wasn’t clear 
enough. 
 

 Young people found it difficult 
to access appropriate 
information. 

 

 Messages about Covid-19 were 
frightening for some children.  
 

 Young people at risk of 
exploitation have been 
perceived as causing harm.   

 

 It was reported that some young people were unaware of available support – there was a need better 
communication. 
 

 A need for clear messaging for all parents whose children 
are missing during a lockdown – including the need to 
contact social services.  Strong message required, including 
‘we can support parents support their children’ 
 

 It was highlighted that there was a need for positive 
messaging about youth services, including cementing the 
idea that youth workers are a critical service, being a 
trusted point of contact and engagement for young people and their families. 

 

 Participants advised that there was a need for child friendly advice 
and guidance. 

 

 Training and clear messaging required about extra-familial harm 
and contextual safeguarding, building on the innovative work the 
Council has undertaken with Dr Firmin. 

 
 

 There had been positive and innovative responses to the need for 
virtual communications, including extra training and information 
for professional practitioners and members of the public as a result of expanding the online usage, 
including  Association of Child Protection Professionals’ podcasts.   

 
“The pandemic has bought this into focus - 
locally there is not enough clarity over the 
availability of support for young people”. 
 
Anthony Hill, Service Manager, HYPE 
Barnardo’s 

 

 
“The effect of lockdown with the 
associated messages has left some 
children and young people feeling 
like a burden as there is so much 
going on in society”. 

 
Rob Farrow, Head of Service 
(Young People), Learning 
Partnership West 
 

P
age 73

https://www.childprotectionprofessionals.org.uk/blogs/aocpp-podcasts


People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 15 of 24 

Service provision and joint working                         Return to contents
          

 ISSUES  REFLECTIONS & RESPONSES 

Equitable access to services; 
information sharing, 
commissioned services, and 
partnerships 
 

 It is not known how many 
children, young people and 
families have not been able to 
access appropriate services. 

 

 Safeguarding and 
confidentiality concerns with 
online services, not knowing 
who else could be in the room 
with the young person. 

 

 Myths about what professionals 
could do during lockdown. 
 

 Some misunderstanding of 
youth worker’s rights and 
responsibilities during lockdown 
created a gap in provision. 

 
 Funding mechanisms were 

described as complicated - 
“Currently a jigsaw”. 

 

 The Council’s Children and Families services continued to work through lockdown and children still had 
face to face visits from Social Workers and other practitioners on a risk assessed basis. 
 

 It was noted that some children who weren’t connected to Social Workers (who may have become 
vulnerable due to effects of Covid-19) would not necessarily have received all available support.   
 

 Sharing more information with Police meant detached workers could identify hotspot areas and contact 
young people. 
 

 Access to statutory services are mainly 9-5 – this could prevent or delay support; services should be 
more balanced with community work, meaning a need for infrastructure outside usual office hours. 

 

 Most provision went online; access to IT devices, although 
there was some distribution, was not available for all. 

 

 Face to face provision for vulnerable children and young 
people should be maintained as much as possible. 
 

 Information had been shared more openly across the youth 
sector with statutory organisations.   
 

 Age range of the Council’s current youth services commissioning was discussed, that it could include 
over 18’s.  
 

 The city already had strong relationships and partnerships, with the Council’s Children’s and Education 
services being a key part.  Covid-19 had shown that this needs to be built on and utilised even more. 

 
“Online support usually only works if 
there is already a relationship between 
the young person and the youth worker 
– it’s difficult to start relationships over 
a computer”. 
 
Molly Flitcroft, Member of UK Youth 
Parliament and Bristol Youth Council 
 

P
age 74



People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 16 of 24 

Equality and inclusion                 Return to contents 
 

 ISSUES  REFLECTIONS & RESPONSES 

Structural inequalities;  
Perceptions and assumptions  
 

 Groups of children and young 
people have been 
disproportionately affected by 
lockdown, specifically low 
income and Gypsy Roma 
Traveller backgrounds. 

 
 

 Assumptions and perceptions 
about young people involved in 
street conflict, serious violence 
and/or drug related offending 
were raised as barriers to 
support and safeguarding. 

 
 
 Stigma and perceptions 

surrounding mental health and 
also lack of cultural competent 
mental health services prevent 
young people accessing 
appropriate support. 

 The digital divide had been highlighted by Covid-19; equality of access to digital connectivity was 
raised as a priority.  

 

 Focus was required on young people with additional needs; and 
young carers who maybe caring for someone still shielding.  

 

 Culturally competent service provision to support complex 
needs of young people from diverse backgrounds was raised as 
essential.  The Council’s Safer Options and Children & Young 
People’s services have a partner approach based on cultural 
competent practice led by young people, informed by 
communities.  This positive approach should be built upon with 
more coproduction with community organisations.  

 

 A focus was needed on Gypsy Roma Traveller 
young people and children from disadvantaged 
backgrounds in general, ensuring they received 
essentials such as food parcels.  Social 
prescribing services were highlighted as valuable 
for supporting and signposting young people and 
families. 

 
 Positive messaging and communication about 

mental health is helpful for young people. 

 
“There was some success in getting 
IT equipment to young people 
during lockdown, this brought into 
focus a need to fully recognise 
and act on digital poverty”. 
 
Jack Beech, Chief Operating 
Officer,  Creative Youth Network 
 

 
“Lots of organisations refer to young Black people 
as offenders, and that narrative makes it really 
hard for those young people to be supported as 
victims of exploitation.  We need to think about 
those organisations who already have close 
relationships in BAME communities and how they 
can be utilised and co-production can take place”. 
 
Maya Mate-Kole Golden Key/ The Call In;  
Commissioner, Commission on Race Equality 
 

P
age 75



People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 17 of 24 

Summing up           Return to contents 
 

Understanding immediate risks and harms associated with a lockdown 

With less ability for professionals and youth workers to make face to face contact visits, the 
Working Group heard evidence about hidden harm.  Some children and young people were 
not able to disclose to trusted professionals who would usually be in a position to make 
referrals to the Council, and so there were less opportunities to safeguard and reduce risk.   
The Council acted quickly and appropriately, undertaking risk assessments and prioritising 
face to face contacts with the most vulnerable families.  Those children open to Social 
Workers still received face to face visits which mitigated the risk of hidden harm.   The 
Council, with partners, acted speedily to focus on school attendance where centralised 
reporting mechanisms didn’t hit the mark.  Members heard that the Designated 
Safeguarding Leads Network was well utilised and is a positive and invaluable resource. 
  
Poor school attendance during lockdown for the eligible cohort of children was a concern, 
especially as the vast proportion were the most vulnerable in the city. Members heard that 
fear of Covid-19 and communication to stay at home was a strong factor over-riding the 
messaging that the option of school was a good one. 
 
Members were advised that risks of intra-familial harm were likely to have been 
exacerbated by lockdown – this, together with less availability of safe spaces, with the extra 
pressure and stress young people and families were under, meant the issue of hidden harm 
extended to children and young people the Council and services were not aware of – those 
who would not have previously considered themselves vulnerable came to be so. Evidence 
was heard that it was unclear for this cohort how to access support.  More than that, some 
children and young people felt burdened with a sense of responsibility about the issues of 
wider society which meant feeling as though they wouldn’t meet any criteria for support 
anyway.   
 
Whilst safe spaces for young people diminished due to closures and lockdown, Members 
heard that this did not mean all young people retreated to the home and so all outside 
spaces were less problematic.  This perception may have led to missed opportunities to 
safeguard young people who for different reasons needed to be in different environments. 
These perceptions extended to determining the support available for different cohorts, 
including the perception of whether young people are victims or perpetrators when 
involved in drugs and street conflict.  Members heard that arrests of young people 
increased during this period and drove activities underground making it more difficult to 
identify those vulnerable young people at risk of criminal exploitation. 
 
Another issue regarding identifying those needing 
support during lockdown which brought structural 
inequalities into focus was that of access to online 
activities and contacts.  Members heard that schools 
knew who the students were who were unable to 
access digital platforms and worked hard to provide 
resources and learning packs, and also that there 
was a mass-distribution of devices with connectivity which involved close sophisticated 

 
“Connectivity is something we really 
do need to crack across the city”. 
 
Alison Hurley, Director of Education 
& Skills 
 

Page 76



People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 18 of 24 

joined up working across youth networks, the Hope Virtual School and the Council. But, 
Members heard there are still gaps across the city where families are unable to connect 
virtually.   
 

Members heard evidence that the extra tensions and stresses associated with lockdown led 
to some young people leaving the family home and, in some areas, foster placements 
breaking down, although this was not the experience in Bristol.  Despite the scarcity of 
foster placements being exacerbated by Covid-19 in some areas, Bristol saw a significant rise 
in people applying to be foster carers, and with that an actual increase of 20 carers.  
Evidence was heard that the Council responded by using the amendments in the Children’s 
Act needed to speed up assessment and approval of foster carers which Members agreed 
was the appropriate thing to do and commended officers and Bristol’s foster carers who all 
stepped up to ensure looked after children were kept safe. Placement stability plans were 
cited as good practice, linked to family work providing extra emotional and practical support 
to families. 
 
 

Understanding risks and harms as we plan to move away from lockdown restrictions 

Enabling and building relationships was a thread running through the evidence heard about 
young people in the community; and increased youth worker presence across communities 
was cited as beneficial to children and young people’s well-being and sense of safety. 
Members heard, therefore, that where possible extra face to face contact should be 
prioritised and resourced; and also good communication and education to workers and 
communities about adolescence development would be beneficial to child welfare in 
communities.  
 
Members heard evidence of the benefits of increased 
detached youth work during this period; it was described 
as “the most successful way of understanding how young 
people are coping.”  Evidence was heard that good 
relationships can be built through detached work, at 
which point valuable intelligence could be gathered to 
help identify those in need of support; and more 
successful referrals to appropriate services could be 
made. 
 

Evidence was heard that the Council, in collaboration with Police and Youth networks, 
follows a contextual safeguarding approach to identify and support young people, and that 
it was an important focus coming out of lockdown.  Members heard that during the 
lockdown period Safer Options, the Council’s programme that supports young people at risk 
of criminal exploitation in partnership with youth organisations and community safety 
partners including the Police, had an increase in referrals, and continued to have a positive 
impact as lockdown restrictions relaxed. Safer Options was noted as a positive culturally 
competent partnership which should be developed further.  
 

 
“Detached youth work needs to 
remain a key part of any service 
offer in the future”. 
 
Rob Farrow, Head of Service 
(Young People), Learning 
Partnership West 

 

Page 77



People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 19 of 24 

There was evidence provided of positive stories of young people helping each other and 
neighbours, including helping out at foodbanks; although there was also troubling evidence 
of some children struggling though poverty and mental health issues.   
 

As the pandemic has brought into sharp focus the stresses and strains of family life, 
especially with the worries and restrictions associated with it, Covid-19 has also shone a 
light on mental health. Evidence was provided of Covid-anxiety among children (including 
deep concerns about how children can effectively social distance when on buses and at 
school, and, relating to this, a fear of 
transmitting the virus to vulnerable family 
members) - this affecting mental health and 
could be a factor in school attendance as they 
re-open.  Members heard evidence of the 
renewed focus on mental health and wellbeing 
during lockdown being maintained and placed 
fully within the remit of safeguarding 
concerns.  There was advice that there should 
be an expectation of increased demand for 
children and young people’s mental health 
services as schools reopen. 
 
Members were told that the reasons underlying the risk of low school attendance as they 
reopen extends to some parents feeling frightened about sending children back to school.  
Evidence was provided that concerns of parents and professionals about accommodating 
pupils safely could be addressed by outdoor learning, which was described as restorative – 
with weather not needing to be a barrier.  

 
As schools reopen, this time was highlighted as an 
opportunity to identify those who need support, 
such as if there is truancy.  Members heard that 
Hospital Education has smaller classes and a 
higher student to staff ratio, and extra support is 
available; and that there are also stronger links 
with families than in main stream.  
 
Finally, Members heard that some children and young people may not disclose concerns to 
a teacher due to lack of reassurance that they will be treated in confidence; and so clear 
messaging was needed to help young people support their peers, Dr Carlene Firmin 
describing this as “one of the best ways to identify support and safeguarding need”. 

 

 
“The Designated Safeguarding Lead 
Network has been invaluable; I think having 
that post in a mainstream school with 
somebody with that responsibility is fantastic. 
Having that DSL Network is useful all the 
time, during lockdown it was essential”.  
 
Jim Bowyer, Head Bristol Hospital 
Education Services 
 

 
“There have been much better 
conversations around multiagency 
working, hosted by the Council, with 
school nurses; and also with mental health 
services”. 
 
Kate Gough, Head of Bristol Youth 
Services, Creative Youth Network 
 

 
“We need to explore technological benefits - the way we engage with young people will change 
and should change, we need to ensure anything we do is co-produced with those children, young 
people and their families to make change effective and meaningful to communities in Bristol”. 
 
Victoria Caple, Lighthouse Safeguarding Unit Partnership Manager, Avon & Somerset Police 

Page 78



People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 20 of 24 

Recognising the relationships and interconnectivity across organisations,           
partnerships and people 
 
The Working Group has taken a holistic approach to the evidence, recognising the 
relationships and interconnectivity across organisations, partnerships and people involved in 
safeguarding children and young people.   
 
This approach provides an insight into the need to understand the underlying arrangements, 
structures and views we generally don’t see which lead to negative outcomes that we react 
to and need to manage on a daily basis.   
 
The evidence presented to Members has highlighted the key themes of (i) Communications 
and messaging; (ii) Service provision and joint working arrangements; (iii) Equality and 
inclusion.  They influence reflections and responses (positive and negative) relating to all 6 
areas detailed in the findings.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
“Due to lack of capacity in many areas during this 
period, it was important to pull together expertise and 
share best practice to tackle complex issues that 
practitioners were raising”.   
 
Wendy Thorogood, Chair, Association of Child 
Protection Practitioners 

 

 
 “The lockdown period reinforced the 
protective benefits of a universal 
health visiting and service”. 
 
Gerry bates, Head of Children’s 
Services, Sirona Care & Health 
 

Understanding the risks and harms associated with a lockdown,       
and moving away from lockdown restrictions  

Identifying 
who needed 
support and 

assessing risk 
 

School 

attendance     

during 

lockdown 

Family 
tensions 

and stress  
 

Community 
support, 
detached 

youth work 
and 

contextual 
safeguarding 

Children and 

young 

people’s 

mental health 

 

Back to school 

 

Equality & inclusion            

                                                                                                                                                                      

 

Communication & 
messaging 

 

Service provision & joint 
working 

 

ISSUES, REFLECTIONS & RESPONSES 

Page 79



People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 21 of 24 

Communications and messaging; Service provision & joint working; Equality & inclusion 
 

The findings show that the way guidance and communication is presented informs people’s 
responses. For example, Members heard how families delayed reporting missing children as 
they were worried about breaching lockdown rules; and messaging about Covid-19, so as to 
be strong, came across as frightening for some children, causing anxiety and in some cases a 
feeling of being a burden due to the focus on crisis in society.  
 
Participants called for clear and ‘child-friendly’ messaging and clarity surrounding where and 
how support can be accessed, and who it is for.   Evidence was heard how there were myths 
and misunderstandings about what practitioners would and could do; and it was highlighted 
that reinforcing the importance of youth 
workers to the system would help with 
much needed information sharing, and 
afford confidence leading to trust and 
stronger relationships with young people 
and their families.   
 
Training and clear messaging around extra-
familial harm and contextual safeguarding, 
including challenging perceptions of young 
people who are criminally exploited was 
also called for.   
 
Evidence was heard that partnership working, although well-established across the city, 
improved in some areas, including closer working relationships and communications across 
agencies (for example between schools and Social Workers); and Covid-19 has shown how 
important collaboration and intelligence sharing across the system is.  
 
The collaboration that led to distribution 
of laptops with connectivity was an 
example of the ‘art of the possible’, 
although Members  heard that virtual 
working practice requires consideration 
around confidentiality and safety and, 
despite the successful distribution to 
many families, the continuing digital 
divide means  there is work to do to 
ensure fair and equitable access for all.   
 
Members heard that the funding mechanisms for commissioned services were over-
complicated, described as a ‘jigsaw puzzle’, and there was a discussion as to whether the 
age range for commissioned youth services should be raised.  
 
Members heard how  the pandemic had shone a light on structural inequalities across 
society, which all make the task of keeping children and young people safe more difficult, 
and so a focus on bias, cultural competency, economic disadvantage and health inequalities 
was called for. 

 
“Our approach should be how do we ensure a 
person-centred psychologically informed 
approach required to overcome challenges 
associated with perceptions of, for example, a 
young person as offender rather than exploited 
and at risk of harm”. 
 
Maya Mate-Kole Golden Key/ The Call In;  
Commissioner, Commission on Race Equality 
 

 
“Better connections across partnerships have 
developed with short focused meetings, and, in 
terms of success and learning, it is those very 
quick concentrated sharing of ideas and 
experiences that people have found very helpful 
to understand the challenges in other bits of the 
system”. 
 
Ivan Powell, Independent Chair, Keeping Bristol 
Safe Partnership 
 

Page 80



People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 22 of 24 

Recommendations                                                                                                 Return to contents 

The People Scrutiny Working Group recommends that; 
 
1. The Council has an excellent record of working with partners and experts to tap into 

and share best practice and develop innovation, including the contextual safeguarding 
work with Dr Firmin.  The Council should continue to ensure the rich resource and 
knowledge across the sector for training and support is utilised; including being 
informed by expertise and insight of local youth organisations and engage with national 
support and advice, including from the Association of Child Protection Professionals. 

 
2. The extra pressure on the Children’s Services and Education and Skills Directorates since 

March has been highlighted, and the Council should consider ways to offer extra 
support for the work force. This is noted within the context of welcoming the growing 
satisfaction with support and leadership in the survey of children’s professionals and 
practitioners, which should be acknowledged and built on to ensure each member of 
staff, from operational practitioners to senior leaders, feel able to manage the expected 
increase in demand for support as children return to school with continued uncertainty.  

 

3. The positive increase in networking and close partnerships facilitating big changes 
quickly and efficiently should be captured and built upon; and networks such as the 
Designated Safeguarding Leads Network, brought together and supported by the 
Education and Skills directorate, should be encouraged, developed and incorporated 
into collaborative plans to help utilise expertise and build capacity and resilience.  

 

4. The Council, in consultation with partners and communities, should investigate how to 
produce clear child-friendly advice and guidance about keeping safe and well during 
lockdown restrictions with a focus on mental health. It could explain the effects of 
Covid-19, how people may be affected and react, what support is available, and how to 
access that support. Any guidance should be adaptable and reactive to a fast changing 
environment, and be available for all school settings, youth networks, and community 
groups. 

 

5. The Council, with city partners, should explore more ways to support parents,  carers 
and families cope with the extra stress and strains Covid-19 has, and continues to, put 
them through.  This may include family and household guidance in the form of tips, 
advice and coping strategies to help prevent and diffuse stressful circumstances 
escalating into unmanageable and harmful situations.  

 
6. It is welcomed that the Council has continued to commission detached youth work 

across the city.  This should continue and be built on as a priority; and its value should 
continue to be considered by the Council when planning for future commissioned 
services. 

 

7. The positive role of volunteers and mutual aid groups during this period should be 
learnt from and the Council should explore further ways of supporting them.  Social 
Prescribing within community settings should be encouraged and further developed, 

Page 81



People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 23 of 24 

helping to provide much needed local information and signposting for families and 
young people. 

 

8. The Council should work with city partners to place a greater focus on tackling the 
digital divide, and explore options that would enable every household and child to have 
equitable access to the internet. 
 

9. The Council, building on the existing positive work including #wearebristolkids and the 
developing ‘Belonging’ strategy by the Youth Council,  should continue to explore how 
services to help children and young people stay safe and foster well-being could be 
more accessible.  This could include building on the existing community outreach by 
inviting more co-design of provision, increasing cultural competency with stronger 
involvement of grass roots community organisations and with focussed training,  
investigating how Council services could be accessed in different ways and at different 
times, and listening to and learning from children’s and young people’s voices.   

 

10. This report should be considered by the Executive and the senior leadership team, and 
that all findings should be taken into account when planning to mitigate both the 
continuing negative effects of Covid-19 on children and young people, and the risks of 
pandemics causing similar issues in the future.   

 
10a. This report should be considered at the appropriate partnership groups and boards 

(including but not restricted to the following): 

 Health and Wellbeing Board  

 Keeping Bristol Safe Partnership (Keeping Children Safe)  

 Children and Families Programme Board  

 Learning City Partnership Board  

 Race Equality Covid-19 Steering Group 
 
10b.The development of plans to keep children and young people safe within the context of 

the impact of Covid-19 and to build resilience for the future should be considered by 
the People Scrutiny Commission at the scheduled meeting on 14 December 2020, and 
there should be a review in the 2021-22 work programme.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 82



People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Page 24 of 24 

Cllr Hiscott and all the Members of the People Scrutiny Working Group (listed below) would 
like to thank all those who submitted evidence and participated in the Evidence Sessions, 
sharing their knowledge and experience, which has helped provide valuable scrutiny.   
 
 
   
People Scrutiny Working Group 

Cllr Claire Hiscott (Chair) 

Cllr Celia Phipps (Vice-Chair) 

Cllr Eleanor Combley 

Cllr Carole Johnson 

Cllr Tim Kent 

Cllr Gill Kirk 

Cllr Cleo Lake 

Cllr Brenda Massey 

Cllr Ruth Pickersgill 

Cllr Tim Rippington 

Cllr Steve Smith 

 

 

 
People Scrutiny Working Group Report  

Safeguarding children and young people within the context of Covid-19 response and 

recovery planning - Report of the People Scrutiny Commission, Bristol City Council  

28th October 2020  

Foreword added 6th November 2020  

Contact: scrutiny@bristol.gov.uk 

Page 83

mailto:scrutiny@bristol.gov.uk


People Scrutiny Commission work programme 2020-21

22 October, 2pm
Annual Business Report
Public Health Update – for information
Mental Health Strategy update
Performance Report 
Risk Report

14 December, 10am
Public Health -  The impact of Covid-19 on Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic communities
People Scrutiny Working Group 2020 Report (Safeguarding children and young people 
within the context of Covid-19 response and recovery planning)
Review of SEND Evidence Day Findings and Recommendations
Temple Quarter Free School Update
Quarterly Performance Report

8 March 2021, 2pm
Public health update
People Scrutiny Working Group Report: Response to recommendations
Healthy eating
Children In Care, Adoption and Fostering  
Adult Social Care – Older People: Isolation
Alternative Learning Provision (Including Hospital Education)
Quarterly Performance Report
Risk Report

Health Scrutiny Committee (Sub-Committee of the People Scrutiny Commission)

25th February 2021, 2pm
Agenda to be informed by Joint Health Scrutiny Committee and any proposed substantial 
changes to health services brought to the Sub-Committee’s attention. 

Initial proposals:

 Drug and Alcohol Strategy
 Health Scrutiny Working Group Report – Response from the Clinical 

Commissioning Group Governing Body
 Public Health Update

Page 84

Agenda Item 13


	Agenda
	1 Welcome and Introduction
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	6 Action Tracker
	9 The Disproportionate Impact of Covid-19 on Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic Communities
	Public Health - People Scrutiny Commission Report 14-12-20
	Scrutiny Commission BAME Covid 19 slides 14-12-20

	10 Temple Quarter Free School Update
	11 Review of SEND Evidence Day Findings and Recommendations
	SEND Evidence Day - Report of the People Scrutiny Commission

	12 People Scrutiny Working Group Report (Safeguarding children and young people within context of Covid-19)
	13 Work Programme (for information)

